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( liT • 14 TO 19 WBRB MARKED IY 

FOR I 'FtCATlON.) 

EXAMINER HOGBRTY: Come to order. 

Mr. Kennett. 

MR. KENNETT: May I just enter my 

appearance. My name is Carrol Kennett, Assistant City 

Attorney, 2800 City Hall, Kansas City, Missouri 64106, for 

interventor Kansas City, Missouri. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: The company may call its 

next witness. 

MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, your Honor. KCPL 

calls Mr. Michael C. Mandacina to the stand. 

(Witness sworn.) 

TERMINATION OF CENTRAL STEAM SERVICE ISSUES CONTINUED: 

MICHAEL C. MANDACINA testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. ENGLISH: 

Q. Would you please state your name and by whom 

you are employed. 

A. My name is Michael C. Mandacina. I'm 

employed by Kansas City Power & Light Company. 

Q. Are you the same Michael Mandacina that 

caused to be prefiled certain direct testimony in this case 

which has been idexttified as Exhibit 14! 

141 _Oil ___ _ 
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Q. 

to your t~H 

A. No, t do not. 

Q. H I asked you the questions contained in 
I 
1 Exhibit H, would your answers be the same? 

A. Yes, they would. 

Q. Would you like to adopt Exhibit 14 as your 

direct testimony in this matter? 

A. Yes, I would. 

MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, certain questions 

yesterday were referred by Mr. Beaudoin to Mr. Mandacina; 

and what is your Honor's pleasure in addressing these 

questions? Should I do it now or after cross-examination? 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Are you referring to 

questions from the Bench? 

MR. ENGLISH: Questions from the Bench and 

also I believe from Staff counsel that were referred by 

Mr. Beaudoin to Mr. Mandacina. I think these questions are 

four in number. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: You may proceed. 

BY MR. ENGLISH: 

Q. Mr. Mandacina, were you present in the 

hearing room yesterday when Mr. Beaudoin was on the stand? 
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Q. 

lont. to tou 

A.. Y~s. 1 a11. 

Q. t•d like to address these questions to you 

for answer. The first question has to do with American 

Por11al Wear; and the question was, Was the energy audit for 

American Formal Wear done in compensation for permission 

to install a test boiler on the premises? 

A. The answer is, No, it was not. 

Q. Second question, Mr. Mandacina, is the 

amount that the test boiler program cost KCPL. Do you have 

that figure? 

A. Yes. The test boiler program up to the 

point that we stopped was $539,212. 

Q. Is that just capital costs? 

A. That's everything. 

Q. Mr. Mandacina, were you involved in the 

process of National Starch becoming a steam customer of 

KCPL? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. The question that was referred to you dealt 

with the contractual arrangements between Corn Products, 

National Starch, and Kansas City Power & Light. Could you 

briefly explain the contractual process between these three 

entities? 

143 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

6 

6 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. s had enu hlto an 

c~ a c:~ncelhtion c:huu. Wlu:m 

bought their plant, the process basically 

assian•ent of the Corn Products contract to the 

National Starch co•pany for a short period of time at which 

ti•e the National Starch company terminated the agreement, 

the original agreement which thereby caused them to be 

responsible for the cancellation cost. We then entered a 

new contract with National Starch for the steam service to 

National Starch. 

Q. I believe Judge Hendren asked a question 

concerning the sizing of the steam pipe between Grand Avenue 

Station and Corn Products, now National Starch. And the 

question was, Can the line serve other customers besides 

National Starch? 

A. In today's situation it can. It was 

designed to serve the Corn Products' load. The National 

Starch load is significantly less than that; therefore, the 

existing line has additional capacity that's unused. 

And at the time of the National Starch/CPC 

changeover we inquired to various companies in 

North Kansas City who were generating their own steam if 

they would, in fact, be interested in buying some of that 

steam since we did have additional capacity in that line. 

They were all relatively interested until 
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c t~l cost~ t lt t to ~~t 

tholr stoa~ where 1 

butldings on to pipe. The proble~s 

with th~t were enough to ~ake it economiclcally 

si r any of them to attach to the pipe. So 

11 then's nobody really located close to the pipe that could 

1 I hook on. 

S 'i MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, yesterday Judge 

9 Musgrave asked a question of the land area at Grand Avenue 

10 Station. Our accounting department has pulled the 

11 information for records; and for the Commission's 

12 information, I've got three pieces. 

13 The area of the power plant and the screen 

14 house comprises 4.46 acres. The coal yard, which is to the 

15 west of the power plant, is 5.26 acres in size. And we have 

16 a substation as well called the Navy Substation which is .85 

17 acres in area. The total area of the Grand Avenue Station 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

facilities is 10.57 acres. 

Your Honor, at this time I tender 

Mr. Mandacina for cross-examination on his prefiled testimony 

and also his oral testimony this morning. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Ms. Young. 

MS. YOUNG: Thank you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. YOUNG: 

Q. Following up on the information that 
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t e 

ldina in, what • the 4 .46 acr~ 

not the coal yu·d and the substation, or do you 

A. I'm sorry. I don't know that. 

Q. I asked Mr. Beaudoin some questions 

yesterday about the potential effect of the conversion plan 

9 jon summer electric load, and I believe he suggested I speak 

10 Ito Mr. Graham about that; but do you have information as to 

11 !what the possible impact on the summer load would be? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A. Well, I can say just in general that it 

would be minimum because the summer steam load is very 

insignificant at this point; but Mr. Graham does have the 

exact details on it. 

Q. On Page 2 of your direct testimony you state 

that you were promoted to manager of utility steam 

18 operations in 1982. When was that position created? 

19 A. At that time. 

20 Q. So you were the first person appointed to 

21 that position, right? 

221 A. Yes. 

23 
1 

Q. The testimony there also indicates that you 

24 
1
jhad general aanageaent responsibilities for all of ICPL's 

25 l1downtown public utility steam operations. What were the 

II 
jl 
ll 
il 
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~~ w~s to deter~lne lf we could 

ing job to secure the Corn Products 

as a steam customer. The initial six or seven 

spent by me just about entirely doing that. It 

a very intense marketing effort to be able to provide 

kind of load to connect to our steam plant. And at 

point in time that was the gist of my efforts. 

After we had secured that load and it was 
I 

11 !certain that we had established a direction at that point in 

steam business, then I got more involved in 12 time for the 

13 looking into how the steam operation was run; and the 

14 programs that ensued from there were a result of that. 

15 Q. Had any of those later questions already 

16 been addressed in terms of the condition of the steam system 

17 land where the system was at the time you took over as 

18 manager? 

19 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Had been addressed by me, you mean? 

No, by the company. 

Oh, yes. In the late '70s and into the 

22 early ~sos, the company had done at least one formal study 

23 and several informal studies in engineering with respect to 

24 why the situation was getting into the loss characteristics 

2S and everything else. The company had been looking at this 
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I 
3 ~pos•t on to elth~r lna or what direction to 

• lao with the steam lness. 

5 I Q. Okay. Now. according to the Staff testimony 
!i 

6 land company documents that were obtained by the Staff in its 

1 !investigation in this case, it appears that you were quite 
I 

8 ~successful in changing that loss picture at least for the 

9 !short duration that Corn Products was on line at its full 

10 demand. 

11 Do you feel that your management of the 

12 steam operations was successful in changing the steam system 

13 from a stepchild of the electric operations to a profit 

14 center? 

15 A. I think the efforts that I did were 

16 positive. The one thing that really made the difference was 

17 the procurement of the Corn Products steam load as a large 

18 base load factor. The other things were ancillary, and we 

19 kind of cleaned up a few of the operations with respect to 
I, 

20 11better reporting and changed the structure of the actual 

21 1 steam operations to a centralized responsibility rather than 

22 

23 

24 

a decentralized responsibility. 

There was nothing magic in that. The thing 

that made the difference was procuring the steam load for a 

few years from Corn Products. 
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A.. 

lon ~ystem when you took over a1 manaaerf 

lt was an agin& system that over time was 

ina leaks. There's kind of a misunderstanding when 

s we talk about steam losses. The reports the company puts 

6 ·out say "steam unaccounted for" or "steam losses." All of 
I 

7 !those aren't necessarily from the distribution system or the 

8 jpipes in the street. There were some losses from pipes in 

g !the street when they deteriorated to a point where steam 

10 escaped or an expansion joint burst and steam shot out. 

11 There were a lot of other losses in the 

12 total steam system other than just the distribution system. 

13 There were a lot of losses in the customers of the system 

14 which were also called losses, but basically it was 

15 "condensate unaccounted for." 

16 The system, as we have already heard in 

17 jtestimony, was anywhere from 40 to 100 years old based on 
I 

18 the various parts of it. And as the pieces of distribution 

19 equipment were exposed to different conditions in the 

20 street, they deteriorated at different rates. And as we had 
I 

21 Ia leak, not just starting in 1982 but all years prior to 

22 !that, they were fixed. 
I 

So the distrubution system was maintained to 
23 I 
24 lithe extent that as the age caused leaks or other factors 

25 !!caused leaks in the system. the compaay west out aad fixed 

'I !I n UL ___ . _________________________ t_4_, ________________________________ --J 
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In' MS. YOUNG: 

Q. As manager of steam operations, Mr. Mandacina, 

did you take an interest in other steam systems around the 

country? 

A. Yes. I tried to familiarize myself a little 

bit. We didn't do anything very extensive. 

Q. Was KCPL a member of the International 

District Heating Association while you were a manager of 

steam operations? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you participate in any of the proceedings 

of that association while you were manager? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. As I understand, you presented a paper at one 

of their meetings; is that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. What was the subject of the paper? 

A. The subject was the connection between our 

power plant and the Corn Products plant. Basically we talked 

about how the line was built and the background of that. 

Q. As a result of whatever level of interest you 

took in other steam operations aroumd the country, were you 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And were you basically aware of all or most of 

or just a portion of them? 

A. I had heard of some of them. I had never 

8 taken a very large interest in it. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q. And what about the abandonments that he 

described in his testimony? Were you aware of some of those? 

A. Some of those. 

Q. Also your testimony indicates that you are no 

longer the manager of utility steam operations but that you 

still have general management responsibility over those 

operations. Does this mean that you spend less of your time 

now in steam operations than you did when you were in the 

other position? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Do you still keep up at all with other steam 

20 systems across the country? 

21 A. The only aspect of keeping up with them has 

22 lbeen as a result of this case and reading various 

23 I testimonies. 

24 1! Q. For instance, are you aware of the disposition 

25 ~~~of the steam system in Rochestet, New York! 
I 
li ll l. ____________________ ts_t ______________________ ~ 
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Q. 

$ t you it! 

A. 1·~ not sure. I recall hearing that as one of 

co~panies that's been looked at. 

Q. And what with about the recent sale of the 

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania steam system? 

9 A. I think that maybe was the Rochester plant 

that Catalyst Thermal was involved with. I think they're in 

11 Pennsylvania or Philadelphia, I guess, is where they are. 

12 They all kind of muddle up in my mind. I'm sorry. 

13 Q. To what extent did you follow the details of 

14 the transaction in the Commission case involving the sale of 

15 the UE steam system and the Ashley generating system to 

16 Bi-State Development authority and Thermal Resources 

17 
1 

respectively? 

18 I A. When they had their case here in 

19 !Jefferson City, I sat in on the first day of the hearings just 

20 Ito get a little more familiar with what was going on. 

21 I Q. And based on your keeping track or the 

22 knowledge you had of these other transactions, why do you 

23 think it is that district steam heating can succeed in 

24 St. Louis and some of these other cities but not in 

25 Kansas City? 
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10 

~r~ in K~m!uu C1 ty, th~r~' a 

tween just the cost of gas and the 

cost of team. There are different aspects of steam. If 

1 re considering waste to energy, the cost of landfills on 

the east coast, for instance, are extremely higher than they 

are in the Kansas City area. I'd say the general competitive 

edge is a lot different in Kansas City even than in 

St. Louis specifically with respect to the cost of gas if 

11 nothing else. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q. Now, on Page 12 of your testimony you refer to 

purchase of the test boilers from Lattner Boiler Manufacturing 

Company. Was this purchase made under competitive bidding 

procedures? 

A. No. I believe--and again Mr. Graham can 

17 talk about the details of the test project, but I believe in 

181 this situation due to the fact that it \-las a very limited 

19 !test situation, we did look at a number of boiler 

20 !manufacturers and chose one without a competitive bid. 

21 'I But based on the facts that he had some 

22 I experience of this company and the representatives had 

2311 experience in the Kansas City area, our engineers were 
II 

24 II hail iay: with the product, and it would provide us with a 

25 llgood comparison to have a stable single unit to look at to 
I! q 

I' 
~ lSl 
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tnt product. 

discussed this with our purchasing 
" ill 

: !1 80 ou: ::::·:.::::::::: :::~ w:.:·::r.:0!::::.:r:~·::.w:.:: 
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1 !project, however, it was a management decision that at this 

s point we would pursue on a limited basis the Lattner 

9 boilers. And then as we advanced in the conversion plan, we 

10 would go out for a competitive bid with whoever was 

11 available to bid on it. 

12 Q. And were the estimates that the company has 

13 made of the cost, the total capital cost of the test boilers 

14 made based on the costs of the Lattner boilers in the test 

15 projects? 

16 A. That was part of it. That was part of it. 

17 The cost of the boilers was part of the total cost of doing 

18 a test project. 

19 Q. Mr. Mandacina, are you aware of any steps 

20 taken by the company to involve customers in this case in 

21 II support of the company's conversion plan? 
li 

22 li A. Well, we've kept our customers advised all 

23 llaloug on what was going on. We've had several meetings in 

24 !lour building inviting all the steam customers in right 

25 lifro~ the start as soon as we had discussed the test project 
jl .I 
~-------------------1_5_4 ______________________ ~ 
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"n' we di we to 

4 ~~ • te'lit with ff, W@ had a meeting with our 

\5; CU,tOIIUU'S ained to them what the direction is, what 

results of our last few years efforts were, the fact 

Corn Products had gone away. We've involved--tried 

8 keep our customers involved right from the beginning, and 

gljthat's why we're approaching--

Q. Isn't it true, Mr. Mandacina, that the 

11 company devised a six-step strategy to get customer 

12 involvement in this case? 

to 

13 A. A six-step strategy? I'm not familiar with 

14 your six steps. 

15 Q. I guess I'm going to have to refresh your 

16 memory. 

17 MS. YOUNG: Could I have a moment, please. 

18 Do you want me to go through the document 

19 initially before I provide copies around? 

20 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Are you planning to mark 

21 it for an exhibit? 

22 MS. YOUNG: I think I'm going to have to, 

23 yes. 

24 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Why don't you go ahead 

25 and mn k it. 
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t h Staff Data 

No. in 
li 

4 1 ho11 Mr. Steve Cattron. The response wu provided on 

s I Febru1ny 9 of 1987, and the entire response is attached to 
'I 

6 ~~~the data request. 

li 
1 I 
8 !Exhibit 20. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: It wi 11 ma r'ked 

l 
9 (EXHIBIT NO. 20 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

10 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

11 BY MS. YOUNG: 

12 Q. Mr. Mandacina, I've provided you a copy of 

13 Data Information Request No. 690 from this audit which was 

14 requested from Mr. Steve Cattron on February 4 of 1987 and 

15 the answer by the company on February 9 of 1987. Can you 

16 tell me whose signature appears in the "Information 

17 !Provided" section? 

18 A. Yes. That's mine. 

19 I Q. Is it true that the response to that Data 

20 I Request is a memorandum that you drafted to a list of 
I 

21 'recipients including Mr. Doyle, Rassmussen, Mayberry, 

22 !Beaudoin, Showlander, and Graham? 

23 A. Yes. That's the first document. 

24 Q. And is the first attac~ent to that document 

25 not a list of six suggestions for customer intervention in 
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to 

l tems on 

I regarding 

there? 

Q. 
rib~ it 

h 

t way. 

eted. I'd 

you so•e questions about the remaining five 

that 1i st. 

Was the second step or suggestion completed 

providing the spokesman with information as listed 

A. I guess I can answer in the affirmative in 

that at this meeting a spokesman did stand up and address 

the situation. 

Q. Okay. And then No. 3, was that one 

accomplished also in terms of the informal meeting? 

A. Yeah. The location was our building. 

Q. And would the same be true for No. 4, that 

that was accomplished by the time of the informational 

meeting? 

A. Yes. I would add that it wasn't just 

interested customers. It was all customers that were 

invited. 

Q. Thank you for clarifying that. 

On No. 5 there seem to be two parts to that. 

One has to do with the meeting itself in providing 

information. Was that step accomplished! 

A. Briefly~ yes. I suess it was. 
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II II 
'i A. • we did not get involved in "t:j 
II ping custoaers develop testiaony other than providing 

6' ~~ aeneral i nforaat ion, press releases, and things that were 

1 ~~.~public inforaation. 

8 I Q. Did you or any other company personnel to 

gllyour knowledge work with Mr. Mauro in preparation of his 

10 I testimony? 

11 A. Mr. Mauro? 

12 Q. Yes. For the intervenor. 

13 A. No, not to my knowledge. 

14 Q. Thank you, sir. 

15 The final step is to request customers to 

16 1 contact the Commission/Staff regarding possi bi 1i ty of 

17 hearings to be held in Kansas City. Was this step completed 

18 when the intervenor group filed its motion requesting a 

19 local hearing in Kansas City? 

20 

21 

A. 

Q. 

I suppose you could say it was. 

Thank you. Is it also true that you sent a 

22 iletter to steam customers during the week prior to the local 

23 public hearing regarding the public hearing in Iansas City? 

24 A. I probably did. 

25 Q. Was that letter send to all steam custoaers 
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Of ~ct ~t~•· 

A. nl 1. ~v~ry ua~ 1 ~~nt a 

l~U~r out H was to dl st~aa customers. 

Q. As manllger of the steam system, were you 

~VOl' cont~cted by persons outside the company concerning 

of the steam system for sale? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

And how did you respond to those inquiries? 

I basically answered them all to the extent 

10 that the steam system was not for sale. 

11 Q. And was that your decision on how to respond 

12 to those letters? 

13 A. Those letters? You mean the inquiries? 

14 Q. Yes. 

15 A. No. That was the company policy. 

16 Q. Okay. Would you have treated those 

17 inquiries any differently if it had been your decision to 

18 make--to handle those? 

19 A. Probably not depending on the situation 

20 ~,~with respect to the direction we thought steam was going. 

21 I Q. Under what scenario might you have responded 

22 
1
j differently? 

23 11 A. I would think that had a third party had the 

24 !I funding to completely rebuild the system and was able to 

25 !I serve the syst6m in an unregulated mode and select his 

II II tst 
u 
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4 11 ink t would to be \n conjunction with our complete 
td' 

s ~~convenlon phn, however. 

Attached to the direct testimony 6 ~~ Q. Thank you. 

7 I Staff witness Mark Oligschlaeger is a phone message form, 

s ~ a call in May of 1986 from a Kent McCord regarding interest 

911in buying GAS if it is ever for sale. Is GAS an 

10 !abbreviation for Grand Avenue Station? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, it is. 

Did you return Mr. McCord's call? 

I believe I did. 

Do you know what the nature--could you 

15 !expand on what the nature of his inquiry was? 

16 A. As I answered in that data request, the 

17 nature of his inquiry was, Would it be for sale; and my 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

answer was, No. 

Q. And what was the reason for that response? 

A. Because as I said before the policy was at 

that time we were not and have not yet offered Grand Avenue 

or the steam system for sale. 

Q. When you were manaser of the steam systea, 

were you ever aiven any kind of first ri&hts to market steaa 

to prospective new customers in the downtown area over 
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~ A. 1'a not suro first rl ' 1r~; but, no. 

3 th~r• was n•v•r ~ny d••lgnatlon glven me t 1 had any 

~ iablli to go do anything that would be different than the 

s •lectrlc customers should receive. 

6 Q. And were you ever given any dedicated 

7 

8 

9 

10 

marketing people whose sole or primary responsibility was to 

market steam? 

A. No. Can I add to that, or is that a good 

enough answer? 

11 Q. That's good enough. Thank you. 

12 MS. YOUNG: I don't have any other 

13 questions. Thank you. 

14 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Ms. Bjelland. 

15 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. BJELLAND: 

16 Q. Mr. Mandacina, I have just a few questions, 

17 please. 

18 If you could refer to Page 5 of your 

19 testimony, beginning at Line 7 you refer to the steam 

20 losses. In 1981 those losses were close to 45 percent of 

21 the total system or total steam produced. And in the 

22 following sentence it indicates that steam losses were 

23 reduced to about 20 to 25 percent in a more recent period. 

24 Could you tell me or give me the specific percentage of 

25 losses for the years 1932 through 1986! 
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MS. BJELLAND: I have no further questions. 

1 Ill Thank you. 
~ i 8 !i~ EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Finnegan. 
~ f 

9 ~~CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FINNEGAN: 

10 I Q. Mr. Mandacina, while you're on Page 5 there 

11 talking about that same question, you indicate that the 

12 reduction in steam losses was due to the leak repairs. Was 

13 it also not due to the fact that you found some customers 

14 who were not running all their condensate through the meter? 

15 A. That was part of it, yes. 

16 Q. With respect to the energy audits that KCPL 

17 ·has run, how much have these cost? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

:?5 

A. I'm sorry. I don't have those details. 

Mr. Graham will have them. 

Q. You gave a figure for the test boiler 

program to date is $539,212, I believe? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And does that include soae energy audits for 

those particular buildings? 

A. No, it does not. 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

tnh tnt 

Q. You're not requesting any of that money in 

this case? 

A. As far as--well, to my knowledge, and I'm 

not well versed with the accounting procedures, but that is 

all being accounted for in a separate function that is going 

to be borne by the shareholders to the best of my 

knowledge. 

Q. With respect to the National Starch 

contractual arrangements, I believe you said that Corn 

Products had a contract with a cancellation clause? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then it was assigned to National Starch? 

A. The whole contract was assigned to National 

Starch. 

Q. National Starch terminated the agreement and 

paid a cancellation charge, is that correct, or you 

negotiated a new agreement in lieu of the cancellation 

charge? 

A. No. National Starch is paying the 

cancellation charges from the original contract over a four­

or five-year period, different amounts. In addition to 
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us to 

3 contract. 

Q. Ar~ these on terms more favorable than Corn 
II 

4 II 
s JProduct'' contract? 

6 :! A. The costs are similar. I don't know. 

1 ~average is about $6 an Mlb for National Starch. 

Its 

8 Q. Are the cancellation amounts that are being 

9 paid 

10
1 

going into steam revenues, or do you know that? 

11 I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2'1 I 

A. I don't recall. 

MR. ENGLISH: We'll find that answer. 

THE WITNESS: We can find out and let you 

know. It's easy to check. 

BY MR. FINNEGAN: 

Q. With respect to the question of being 

contacted by interested potential purchasers, I guess, do 

you recall being contacted by Mr. Tab Schmidt of Thermal 

Resources or now maybe known as Catalyst Thermal? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

A. 

Somewhere in the '83 to '86 time frame? 

Yes. 

nil 
2311 for 

I! 

Q. And you advised him that the system was not 

sale? 

24 11 

251 
I 

A. That's correct. 

Q. On Page 6 of your testimony you refer to the 

I 
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A. W~ll, the use of coal was cut baLk in the 

steam because Corn Products left the system, 

if that's what you meant. 

Q. Right. But if the Grand Avenue Station were 

still utilized to produce electricity, there would be a need 

to burn coal again, would there not, or under that scenario? 

A. Technically when Grand Avenue was an 

11 electric production station, it did burn coal to make 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

electricity as well as steam. 

Q. And if another purchaser, another entity 

purchased the system or condemned the system and took it 

over, it could sell electricity, could it not, to KCPL under 

the PURPA guidelines? 

A. Well, I think you asked two different 

questions there. There are legal--there is a legal method 

for someone to sell electricty back to an utility. 

20 I Q. And if an entity were a governmental entity, 

21 I it could sell electricity to itself and to others- -I mean, 

22 Jin its area, to itself at least? 

2311 A. Well, if you say "sell it to itself," I 

2411 suppos• that's· ·yes, it could. 

251: Q. All right. Nt\w~ on Page 8 through basically 

I
I 
I 

liS 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

ln the canwerslan telt Of 

A. l, it's not a detailed step by sup. It's 

1 overview. lt discusses the generalities of the 

test project. 

1 

9 

10 

11 

Q. And you talk about things such as how long 

it took to get city permits for construction and other 

factors that were involved in this test project? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Something seems to be missing, and that's when 

12 KCPL went to the Public Service Commission and asked for its 

13 approval to operate--to run this project. Was there any such 

14 a step taken? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A. To the best of my knowledge this case is the 

first time we've gone to the Commission asking for approval. 

We discussed the aspects of the test project with the Staff 

before we began anything. 

Q. You made no formal request for a variance from 

20 the Promotional Practices Rule or anything like that; is that 

21 1 correct? 

22 I 
I 23 1\and subsequent to that, we did not feel that there was any 

24 llneed based on the discussions we had for any kind of a 

25 !variance from the Promotional Practices Rule because we did 

I 
II 

At the time that we were talking to the Staff 

166 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Q. 

uad~rstaadlnc that anythinc v~ v~re doinc vas or 

conflact vlth that rule and still don't. 

Givlnc away a boiler in your Mind does not 

4 ·conflict with any Proaotional Practices Rule? 

A. The test boiler plant as it has been laid out 

6 does not have any conflict with the Promotional Practices 

1 Rule in MY Mind. 

s 
9 

10 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Mr. Mandacina, you're not a lawyer, are you? 

No, I'm not. I'm an engineer. 

On Page 14 of your testimony you mention--you 

11 talk about the unusual problems that have surfaced during 

12 the test project include providing adequate mechanical 

13 support for the boiler. You say it on Lines 20 and 21. 

14 Could you elaborate on this basically what you mean by 

15 providing adequate mechanical support for the boiler! 

16 A. There were several interesting situations in 

17 the various buildings. Every building is a little 

18 different. In order to locate a boiler in a space that was 

19 halfway available or could be made available near the steam 

20 !entrance, one in particular area that we found was in a 

21 basement of a very old building that was right next to the 

22 wall where the steaa pipe came in through the wall 

23 !underground froa the alley. 

The area risht there was basically empty. ! 
24 I' 

25 ~~The customer wasn't using it fo~ aaythiag. He had a few old 

II 
I 

167 
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be could eatily aove. When thole 

were • we found there was no real concrete floor 

1t was basically dirt and aravel. And ln order to 

provl a 5olid foundation, we had to lay some concrete to 

s !set the boiler on. 

~ 
6 i Q. Is that what you mean by adequate mechanical 

7 1i support? 

8 I 
9 ! 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A. Yes. That's one of the examples. 

Q. I thought perhaps you might have been 

referring to the need for maintenance personnel, mechanical 

maintenance people to repair and operate the boiler. 

A. I guess it should have said "structural 

support." I'm sorry. 

Q. What have you found though in the way of 

15 what's needed for mechanical maintenance as opposed to the 

16 operation where the steam pipes just come into the building 

17 and run through it and come back out again? 

18 A. Well, in some cases maintaining the boilers 

19 is a lot easier than maintaining some of the valves in the 

20 steam line. The boilers themselves are various sizes; and 

21 II the larger you get, the more heating is required which means 

22 llyou have more controls. But basically it's like a big hot 

23 !water heater. 

24 l 

25 :!been very adequately able to handle the operation and 

'I 
II 

We found that our steam trouble men have 
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rt of ~if~ :!It~~-

h u~~~~ rta~nt Bill\)' 

not on M ng 1 i l:s fore. 

tou ect WI! to ide U!i. the understanding 

o1ptn l t:mce of how well those fellows would adapt to 

•alntaining and operating these kind of boilers. And for 

.the aost part they have shown us that they're pretty easily 

8 [trained on the minimal aspects of the boilers themselves and 
; 
I 

9 ·~have been able to handle it. 

10 .i Q 0 And once you stopped providing the 

11 maintenance on these boilers, it would be up to the building 

12 owner to provide its own maintenance? 

13 A. That's correct. That's the plan. 

14 Q. Presently the building owner does not have 

15 I 
I 

to maintain a boiler? 

16 A. Some building owners already have people on 

17 site maintaining their own system. Sometimes it's chillers; 

18 

19 

20 

2'1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

sometimes it's other equipment. If the customer is a steam 

customer that has any kind of valving in a system, he 

already has people or contracts people to do that type of 

maintenance too, which, like I said before, sometimes is a 

lot more costly and labor intensive than maintaining a 

boiler in our experience. 

Q. And for those who do not have that 

personnel, they will have to get such personnel! 
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t t 

, probably nothing more than 
j ~ 

s 'i ma nt a in i ng a t water heater in your home. 
w 

s ! MR. FINNEGAN: That's all the questions I 

II 
: II EXAM! NER HOGERTY: 

9 i CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. KENNETT: 

Mr. Kennett. 

10 Q. Mr. Mandacina, if you get completely out of 

11 the central station steam business, are any of your people 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 I 

in the steam department going to be unemployed? 

A. No. I think that with respect to the 

present situation in the company we would not lay them off 

directly. Those people basically all have enough seniority 

that we can place them in other positions. 

Q. They'll have other positions for them as 

they already have for you? 

A. I guess I don't understand the question. 

Q. Well, at one time you were the manager of 

steam operations; now you have two or three other jobs? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. So that is downgrading the steam department 

24 ,right there. is it not! 

25 A. no, sir. As a matter of fact, there is 
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H 5 ilh!t t1111o or three yeus. tt's just different people. 

6 !I Q. In response to a question from the Staff 

1 I counsel, you stated that you never had anyone whose primary 

aj function was to market steam; is that correct? 

9 'I A. They said sole purpose was to market steam. 

10 IWe have at least--

11 Q. Okay. So I'll say whose sole function--

12 whose sole function, not primary function, whose sole 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

function was to market steam? 

A. In the years I've been involved with it, 

that's true. 

Q. Did you have--do you have in the last five 

years a person whose primary function was to market steam? 

A. In that context, no. We have people who 

have a lot of time spent in account maintenance and helping 

steam customers and providing, if you wish, a marketing 

effort to keep the steam customers. 

Q. How about a marketing effort to obtain new 

customers? 

A. In conjunction with the commercial 

o~rations personnel, we have people that talk to new 

171 
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Q .. 

A. I believe it was the Vista. 

Q. And how long ago has that been? 

A. Mr. Graham will have those exact details. 

lt's been several years. The decision was made a long time 

prior to their actually coming on board for them to be a 

steam customer. 

Q. Now, a couple of years ago you laid a new 

line in Main Street, didn't you? 

A. We coventured the line that was installed 

from Main Street so the AT&T building and the new building 

could be built over the existing line. We had to basically 

abandon an existing line and redo the direction of that 

line, which ended up coming down Main Street to maintain the 

18 . integrity of the system. 

19 I Q. Since the Vista went on the line, the AT&T 

20 building has been completed? 

21 A. Uh-huh. 

22 Q. The Commerce Bank building is now open. 

23 United Missouri Bank building; is that right? 

24 A.. To my knowledge, yes. 

25 Q. And the one that Executive Hills built there 
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22 

23 

24 

25 

~, ~ n~w on~ too. 

Q. those buildi are on the steam 

• right? 

A. 

Q. 

That's correct. 

What effort, if any, did the company make to 

market tne steam system to the developers of those buildings? 

A. Well, I can tell you what I think. It would 

probably be better to defer to Mr. Graham whose people were 

actually responsible for doing that. He can tell you the 

exact details. 

Q. And the building is now going up there south 

of 12th Street between Main and Walnut, or is it Baltimore 

and Main, I guess, being built by Executive Hills--

A. Yes, I know the building. 

Q. Has any effort been made--was, to your 

knowledge, to market the steam system to that building? 

A. Well, yes, I think there was. And again 

Mr. Grahamis people are the one's that are responsible for 

doing that; and I would rather defer to him so he can give 

you all the details. 

Than'k you. 

MR. KENNETT: I have no further questions. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Questions froa the Bench? 

Coaaissioner Mueller. 
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Corn 

cont rae ted for? Did they change their production 

6 lor line or anything like that? 

~ I 
1: 

i 

9 i 
li 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

You mean National Starch? 

National Starch. I'm sorry. 

Corn Products, the original customer, had an 

10 ~estimated demand of about 250,000 pounds per hour. And 

they never did get up to that level. They actually operated 11 

12 for a couple of years about 160,000 pounds per hour. 

13 When National Starch bought the Corn 

14 Products plant, their--National Starch's Product was starch 

15 oriented rather than additive--sweetener additives that Corn 

16 Products produced. Therefore, National Starch actually 

17 changed the tail end of their process; and in doing that 

18 they built a new building that used a direct gas flame for 

19 drying in the last stages of the starch process. That then 

20 reduced the total load that they had required for steam 

21 considerably. And it was basically a different process than 

22 Corn Products had used. 

23 Q. Different process. Totally different 

24 product then too! 

25 A. Yes--well, the end result was. They both 
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1t~r ~J~~tn~rs. 

Q. ildl w~nt on or w1s built, 

t w1n sy't~• do use now? Are they on a 

'5 gas U er? 

6 A. No. I believe they have electric space 

1 heating. 

8 COMMISSINOER MUELLER: Thank you. 

9 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Commission Hendren. 

10 QUESTIONS BY COMMISSIONER HENDREN: 

11 Q. On Page 6 where you talk about the plant 

12 originally being built for electric generation--

13 I COMMISSONER HENDREN: Can you here me down 

14 I there with that noise? 

15 THE REPORTER: Yes. 

16 BY COMMISSIONER HENDREN: 

17 Q. You talk about the boilers were designed for 

18 that purpose, for electric production and then steam. Have 

19 you estimated the cost if you would put in boilers to have 

20 the thermal level that you would need to continue to provide 

21 steam service and continue the plant? If you replace those 

22 boilers. do you have a cost estimate? 

23 A. Yes. That was included in the conversion 

24 plan, and I think that's between the $20 and $SO million range 

25 that w~s looked at as one of the alternatives. The conversion 
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Q. i an rt of Mr. 

~ so that r d r in there? 

A. lt's in there somewhere. 

Q. And so you considered that alternative and 

found that not economically feasible? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And if you were to abandon the system, would 

you have to do anything with all that underground piping? 

12 Would any of it have to be removed or filled in? What would 

13 have to be done? 

14 
A. Well, we anticipate that at least the 

15 
manholes would have to be filled in to meet whatever kind of 

16 
codes would be required. A lot of the underground piping is 

17 encased in concrete, so it's not going to settle or 

18 collapse. 

19 
We have a process now that we're using for 

20 backfilling in our steam excavations to go down and fix a 

21 I pipe where we use fly ash. It's a wet fly ash product that 

22 !sets up sort of like concrete but not nearly as hard, and it 

23 ~·can be pumped pretty easily. 

24 jl We will probably use the fly ash product to 

.I 25 p do a lot of the filling and backfilling. It reaches a 

.I 
I' 

jl 
I 116 
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a lot rt or ot.'her type of 

not as bard as coaplete concrete. lt can be 

tb1t hardneu dependlns on how you orlJlndly 11h 

4 lt. So lf we do find that certain either 11anholes or pieces 

~ of distribution sections have to be filled for whatevPr 

6 reason, we anticipate pu11pina fly ash into the11 at least at 

7 this time. But we really haven't looked at that technically 

8 yet. There may be other things that co11e up when we look 

9 into it. 

10 Q. So you don't have a cost estimate as to what 

11 it would be to make that safe permanently, I guess? 

12 A. No, because it's basically safe now. Those 

13 pipes aren't going to collapse now. It wouldn't necessarily 

14 be any aspect of making it safe. It's not in an unsafe 

15 condition now. It would just be permanent abandonment. 

16 Q. But you don't have a cost estimate on that? 

17 A. No, ma'am. 

18 I 

19 

COMMISSIONER HENDREN: Thank you. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Commissioner Fischer. 

20 QUESTIONS BY COMMISSIONER FISCHER: 

21 ~~~~ Q. Mr. Mandacina, how many potential purchasers 

22 have contacted you or other personnel of Kansas City Power & 
l 

23 !Light in recent years regarding the potential sale of the 
I 

24 .1 steam syste11'? 

25 j! A. Well, in the data request I answered about 
,I 

II 
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1~~ 
i 
~ Q, You •entioned a couple of them in cross, a 

5 iiT•b Scbaidt of Thermal Resources? 

6 ~II A. Yes. 

1 ~ Q. There was another name too that I didn't 

8 'catch. 

9 A. McCord or McCafree (phonetic). It was on a 

10 telephone note. It was in my files. That's the only way I 

11 could have remembered it. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q. And who would he be? 

A. He was--if I remember from the little note, 

he was an equipment manufacturer's rep; but I'm not not 

sure. It was, like I say, just a little note that happened 

to be in my file. 

Q. Have you had contacts from the city or 

Jackson County? 

A. Yes, we have to the extent that I appeared 

before the City Energy Commission several times. In the 

meeting itself, the question was posed, Would Kansas City 

Power & Light be willing to sell the system? So from that 

23 aspect, yes, we have. 

Q. Were there any other contacts that you can 

25 be classifie~ as potential 
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what the 
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4 llsysu• consl of. He seen the notice about the rate 

5 ~~c3<se in the newspaper and was interested in finding out what 

6 it was all about. And we explained it to him, and he had no 

7 interest then. 

8 Q. If the Commission permits Kansas City 

g Power & Light to abandon the steam business, will the 

10 distribution lines have substantial value to the company? 

11 A. I guess I don't really know how to answer 

12 that. Like I tried to answer before, we are not certain 

13 exactly what has to be done with those lines, if anything, 

14 or if we could use them in some way. Some of them are in 

15 good shape, and some of them aren't. Book valuewise, there 

16 is book value I 1 m sure, a plant value. I guess value 

17 
1
depends on what you're going to use it for or who wants 

18 1 them. 

19 Q. Do you know of other purposes that you could 

20 use that distribution steam network for? 

21 A. Technically I'm really not well versed 

22 enough. There's always a possibility of putting some other 

23 type of cable inside that pipe perhaps. 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Like fiber optics! 

Perhaps. Initial ~ thou&h, I don't think 
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for ~ure. Our engineers would have to tell us 

that. 

Q. Would it have any value to the electric 

system? Would you ever put electric cable through that? 

A. I would doubt it. 

Q. If the Commission permits Kansas City 

Power & Light to abandon the business, would you explain 

what plans the company would have for the Grand Avenue 

12 Station? I've read about Friends of the Aquarium proposal, 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

and I'm not clear whether you dismantle the Grand Avenue 

plant in order to donate the land, or just what all would be 

involved in that. 

A. Well, I don't have too much more detail 

either. I understand that the concept is to provide that 

I building 

Q. The building itself, not the land? 

to the Friends of the Aquarium. 

I 
I I I'm sure. 

A, Well, the building and the land it sits on, 

Q. Do you know if whether the plant would have 

to be dis11antled in order to accomplish that? 

A. In my best guess, I don't think anybody 

could use it with all that equipment in there. 
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So 

l l Ill t \ d b~ l ' 
A. 1 don't tnow what the ans are, if there 

ans~ in my best estimate, yes, that would be 

the or one of the approaches. 

Q. Can you explain to me who is this group 

called the Friends of the Aquarium? 

A. I don't know any persons' names. It's a 

group of people that have gotten together in the Kansas City 

area, and they've been around for several years. It's a 

not-for-profit type group that are interested in bringing 

the aquarium to the river front to help the Kansas City 

development on the river front development. 

Q. Is that a new group or has it been around 

for a while? 

A. 

Q. 

It's been around several years. 

Do you know if Kansas City Power & Light has 

considered offering the Grand Avenue Station for sale or 

donation for other purposes? 

A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. Can you explain what development plans 

exist that you're familiar with for the river front area in 

Kansas City just generally? 
A. In general, yes, the William Mitchell River 

'Boat was brought up here a year or so ago. That was the 
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has run into tome 

t was lnt to be 

ln tho river front area. 

At this point in tim~ I think everything is 

\l st~lled with respect to funding. The plans, though, 

as I've read in the paper is to gear that immediate 

river front area into a development with the present city 

market area and try to combine those two areas into a more 

attractive river front development especially for tourism. 

Q. Do you know if that would include the river 

quay or not? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, it would. They're separate areas. 

Is there also a discussion of putting a race 

track in that area? 

A. Not right in that right immediate area. I 

think--the horserace, you mean, or the dog races? That area 

would not be suitable right there on the river front. Now, 

maybe upstream or downstream there's room; but I'm not 

really an expert on this. 

Q. I'm just trying to get an understanding of 

where things are at in Kansas City. I had heard the 

livestock area might be an area for a horseracing track? 

A. That's not right in this immediate area 

we're talking about. 

Q. Is there a major development firm that's 
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ver front area other 

1 coapanyt 

Well. that's not really a fin~. That's a 

4 aroup of--there's a River Front Development Association. 

5 That's another not-for-profit group. I don't know offhand 

8 of any actual real estate firm or development firm that's 

7 involved. I'm sure there's alot looking. 

8 Q. We heard at the local hearing about a task 

9 force that had been established to look at some of the waste 

10 problems in Kansas City. Were you in attendance at that 

11 local hearing? 

12 A. Yes, I was. 

13 Q. Has Kansas City Power & Light had contact 

14 with that group, and if so would you explain the contacts? 

15 A. Well, there were, I think, several different 
I 

16 groups at the public hearing. We have had contacts through 

17 the aspect of the city's task force for waste to energy. We 

18 have a company person who is on that task force; and she has 

19 been involved with the task force development in that 

20 continuation for several years now, and she has kept in 

21 touch with those people. 

22 1 Q. You mention that the company had made a 

23 ilpolicy decision not to offer the Grand Avenue Station or the 

24 jsteam distribution system for sale; is that correct! 
I A. That's correct. 
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he Officer. 

COMMISSIONER FISCHER: Thank you very ~uch. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Commissioner Musgrave. 

1 QUESTIONS BY COMMISSIONER MUSGRAVE: 

8 Q. Is there a possibility that you could sell 

9 off a portion of the steam distribution system if you found 

10 a would-be buyer? 

11 A. I think there is that possibility 

12 technically. 

13 Q. In a very confined, several block area or 

14 how? Just supposing that somebody was interested in buying 

15 a portion of it, what do you think would be their interest? 

16 A. Well, we answered a question from the city 

17 that basically directed that concept of tying several of the 

18 government buildings in the southeast part of downtown 

19 !together on a small little steam system. And brief review 

20 !of that showed that technically it's possible, although 
l 

21 I financially it's cheaper for them to have an individual 

22 1 electric boiler in each of those buildings. 
I 

23 Q. What's the distance between your furthest 

24 north steam customer and the one that is farthest south? 

A. About 15 blocks, which would be a little 
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2 Q. What h your northtn•n•ost 11an·keU 

3 A. Old Townley Hardware ls just a little north 

4 of City Market. On about 3rd and Grand was the Western 

6, Adhesives plant until that burned down. So I guess it's 

6 City Market is farthest northernmost now. The Power & Light 

1 building is at 14th Street, and the Missouri Unemployment 

8 building is actually at 5th and Main, the corner of 5th and 

9 Main, so that's probably the southernmost customer. 

10 Q. What plans are being made for the 

11 Kansas City Power & Light building for heating service if 

12 the Commission allows the company to go out of the steam 

13 business? 

14 A. We would use electric boilers, or we would 

15 offer the customer who owns the building the opportunity to 

16 take advantage of the plan. It would be the customer's 

17 choice. We don't own that building. 

18 Q. The steam lines that are in the streets in 

19 Kansas City, are those encased in an easement that all the 

20 utilities have, or do your steam lines just run individually 

21 through there? 

22 A. We typically are within an easement in the 

23 street. Around the steam lines there is all kinds of other 

24 I zig-zags and parallel and crossing and everything. And 

25 Ill that's part of the probl .. of tryiaa to aate a repair in 

I us 
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thl around our stea11 lines. 

Q. They're not straight for any particular 

distance then? 

A. There is a requirement I'm sure especially 

with respect to the electric cables, how far they have to be 

from other pipes and things. Sometimes the steam lines are 

as much as 20 feet deep; sometimes they're 8 feet deep, so 

there are varying distances between the utilities depending 

on which section of the block you're looking at. 

Q. Why are there various depths of the lines? 

A. Typically when the steam lines were put in, 

they were put in a lot lower than a lot of the more recent 

utilities because it's cheaper not to have to dig them so 

deep, and all those other utilities weren't there. And a 

lot depends on the terrain of the city hills when they put 

the line in. 

Q. Do you use television cameras to check your 

steam lines like they do for the sewers? 

A. No. We never have that I'm familiar with. 

You mean inside the pipe? No. The only way we have any 

ability to check a steam line, other than seeing when the 

steam leaks, is to use an infrared scanner. That is kind of 
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to maintain th~ lin~s or fl out wh~r~ 

were. th~y would at night on a winter day or 

s winter evening drive up and down the street or the alley 

where the steam line was located and take these infrared 

8 pictures and that was an attempt to try to isolate a steam 

g 
1
1eak or determine if there were steam leaks going that we 

10 didn't know about. 

11 It doesn't work too well because as I said 

12 some are as deep as 20 feet deep, and this infrared 

13 connector is just a measurement of temperature differental. 

14 Q. Sort of like flying over the houses and 

15 seeing how much snow was melted on top? 

16 A. It's not even that precise because you can 

17 typically--you can see the color differential where they 

18 don't have the problem. As I mentioned before, the pipes 

19 are typically encased either in concrete or something, and 

20 you may have a leak at one point and that steam may not just 

21 go straight out. It may travel laterally large distances 

22 before it gets to the surface, so the infrared--but the leak 

23 might be 20, 30 yards away. 

24 COMMISSIONER MUSGRAVE: Thank you. That's 

25 all the questions I have. 
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Q. 

l net? 

tions~ your Honor. 

Mft. BNGl. iSH: 

lna, St1ff counsel has asked you 

other steam utilities; and you and 

some discussion about the relative economics. Do 

you recall that discussion? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have any information with respect to 

the relative economics of, say, steam versus gas in any of 

the cities that Catalyst Thermal serves? 

A. Yes. It appears that the cost of gas in 

Kansas City is considerably lower than the cost of gas in 

St. Louis or Boston or Philadelphia. And that in itself 

would provide a lot more competitive edge in those other 

cities for a steam utility to the extent that they were able 

to provide steam at a lower cost than that gas, which isn't 

necessarily the case in Kansas City. 

Q. Do you recall discussing on 

cross-examination certain discussions of the test project 

with the Staff that you testified that you had? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can you identify the Staff members that were 

present during these discussions that you u 

A. I don't lune any notes on HI 
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w recall~ a Mr. Washburn vaa there. a Mr. Ketter was th~re. l 

le~o a Mr. Carver. And there were two other people, and 

.l ~~~ not 
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sura I rocall; 11aybo Mr. Poatherstone, but I'• not 

tt•s been soveral years ago. 

Q. Did Staff suagest any changes in how KCPL 

6 proposed to approach the test boilers and the pricing? 

1 A. Yes. We had originally developed the concept 

8 of the test project in that we would sell electricity to the 

9 customers. It was the Staff's suggestion that it would be 

10 better to provide the electricity to the boiler and sell the 

11 test project customers steam rather than electricity and have 

12 them continue to be steam customers. 

13 Q. Mr. Mandacina, to your knowledge has KCPL 

14 given these boilers to the test customers? 

15 A. No. I think the aspect of the test 

16 project--it was understood that we explain to the customers 

17 what we were doing in hopes that the Commission would 

18 approve a conversion plan that would result in our ability 

19 I to then provide boilers to all our customers. And i £ they 

20 had one as a test project, then they would be the initial 

21 recipients at that time. 
I 

22 i Q. 
I 

23 !charged before the test boilers were installed? 

2411 

25'1 t &A [__ _____________________ 1_._~------------------------------------~ 

Under what tariffs were these test custo11ers 

A. The existing steaa tariffs. 

What tariffs were they charJed after the Q. 
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12 

questions. 

MR. INGLISH: Thank you, Mr. Mandacina. 

BXAMINBR HOGBRTY: Recross, Ms. Young? 

MS. YOUNG: Yes, thank you. 1 have several 

RBCROSS·BXAMINATION BY MS. YOUNG: 

Q. You mentioned that the company coventured 

on construction of a new steam line in Main Street. What 

caused this new construction to be required? 

A. The building of the new AT&T building. 

Q. And what are the terms of this coventure 

13 that you referred to? 

14 A. We paid a third of the cost of installation 

15 of the pipe. AT&T, I believe, paid a third; and I think the 

16 city paid a third. I'm not sure. We can check on that for 

17 you. There were three parties involved. 

18 Q. And what was the rationale for the division 

19 of the costs? 

20 A. I don't know that I could tell you what it 

21 was. I didn't make the decision. 

22 Q. Does the company have a tariff policy 

23 regarding instances where relocation or reconstruction of 

24 llmains is required by a construction project! 

25 A. For electric! 

tH 
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6 you what's in it. 

1 Q. Thank you. In answer to a question from 

8 Co!l!lissioner Hendren you mentioned that the company 

9 considered purchasing boilers of the appropriate size at 

10 Grand Avenue. Is it not true that you only considered 

11 electrode boilers and not natural gas boilers? 

12 A. I really don't recall. Again, as I said, 

13 it's in the study itself as one of the decision 

14 possibilities. We can check and let, you know. 

15 Q. Isn't it true that Mr. Beaudoin testified 

16 yesterday that natural gas was not considered as an option 

17 at Grand Avenue? Never mind. The record can reflect what 

18 he testified to. 

19 A. I don't recall. If that's what he said, 

20 !that's fine. 

21 11 Q. Regarding these discussions with the Staff, 

22 lyou, I believe, mentioned discussions on the test boiler 
I 23 project; but then in response to questions with Mr. English 

24 talked about a meeting, is that correct, which--was there 

25 than one discussion! Was th~re only one 11eeting! Do 
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s A. m~y have be~m other discussions by 

6 with our rate department people. 

1 Q. Who was in attendance for the company at 

8 that meeting? 

9 A. Myself and Bob Sullivan, and I can't recall 

10 if anyone else was. 

11 Q. And you mentioned the Staff personnel who 

12 were in attendance and that possibly you didn't recall all 

13 of them. Were any of the Staff representatives at the 

14 meeting attorneys? 

15 A. I don't know what they were. 

16 Q. Who is the current manager of utility steam 

17 operations at the company? 

18 A. Mr. Al Blair. 

19 Q. At the time of the meeting regarding the 

201 test boiler program, isn't it true that the company 

21 I presented the program as a means of enabling the company to 

22 IJ disconnect some customers from what they conveyed to the 
I 

23 I Staff were leaky, older steaB lines, that they wanted to do 

24 this for better efficiency of the steaB system? 

25 A. That was one of our original intents in the 
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• didn't work very well. 

Q. Isn't it true that that was the only purpose 

presented to the Staff at that meeting? 

1 A.. I don't think so, no. We tried to explain 

8 to them the whole purpose of the test project with respect 

9 to an ensuing conversion plan. One of the ways of 

10 implementing that was by starting on the ends of lateral--

11 old lateral runs. 

12 Q. You mentioned the relative economics of gas 

13 and steam prices in several cities. Those were St. Louis, 

14 Philadelphia, and which other city? 

15 A. I think the question was based on the aspect 

16 of where Catalyst Thermal had installed plants, and I think 

17 they're in Baltimore and Philadelphia. 

18 Q. Okay. Baltimore was the one I missed. Are 

19 jyou aware of the relative gas and steam prices in the city 

20 io£ Omaha? 

21 1 
A. Not very well, no. 

22 I Q. Is it likely that there would be a closer 

23 
1
lrelationship in Omaha than on the east coast? 

24 II A. 

~ii 
It 

Closer relationship to what! 

Q. Would they be closer to competitive in 
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not selling steam as a part of their product. They're 

selling chilled water too, so it's not really apples to apples 

comparison. It's a different package. 

Q. How does that relate to the price of natural 

gas that I asked you about? 

A. The competitive aspect of what their is with 

respect to a gas boiler in a building. I think it's 

directionly related. 

Q. What about the nature of the gas and steam 

prices in Tulsa? Are you aware of that? 

A. I don't know off the top of my head. I'm sure 

we could find out for you. 

Q. And what about Minneapolis? 

A. Again, no. 

Q. And Birmingham, Alabama? 

A. I think I had seen something in one of the 

data requests or something, but I don't know off the top of my 

head. We can look it up for you. 

MS. YOUNG: Madam Examiner, I don't have any 

further questions. I would at this time like to offer 

---~~ -- ----------------------------.-..1 
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ln ition, I'd like to reserve the right 

ide additional testimony from the Staff in response 

6 to Mr. M~ndacina's testimony about the meetings on the test 

7 boiler program. 

8 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, I would object to 

9 that reservation of the right. Under the Order of the 

10 Commission, we have direct, rebuttal, surrebuttal and then 

11 we have oral examination. Cross-examination brought out the 

12 discussions with the Staff, and I do not believe that there 

13 is any procedure or necessity in order to reserve the right 

14 that I don't believe exists under the rules. 

15 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Your objection will be 

16 overruled. Staff may respond to any questions specifically 

17 !regarding that meeting that was brought out today. 

18 MS. YOUNG: Thank you. Also Madam Examiner, 

19 if I could point out regarding the questions about whether 

20 the aquarium project would result in dismantling or 

2i demolition of the Grand Avenue Station building. 

22 I would just refer I believe it was 

23 Commissioner Fischer to Schedule 23-3 of Staff witness 

24 Haskamp's direct testimony. There's a newspaper article 

25 that indicates it's intended for the ~i itself to be 
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(EXHIBIT NO. 20 WAS RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE AND 

6 MADE A PART Of THIS RECORD.) 

1 
EXAMINER HOGERTY: The witness may be 

s excused. 

9 (Witness excused.) 

10 

11 
MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, since 

12 Mr. Mandacina is now excused, I will offer Exhibit 14, which 

13 is his direct testimony. This is his only appearance on the 

14 stand. 

15 
EXAMINER HOGERTY: Hearing no objection, 

16 Exhibit 14 is received. 

17 
(EXHIBIT NO. 14 WAS RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE AND 

18 \\MADE A PART Of THIS RECORD.) 

19 I' EXAMINER HOGERTY: Company may call its next 

,I . 
20 ~~~ wt tness. 

MS. LATZ: Kansas City Power & Light calls 
21 l 
22 ljRobert H. Graham to the stand. 

23 \·1 

,. ,I 

(Witness sworn.) 

25 ~~~OBERT H. GRAHAM testified as follows: 
II 

l! 
!i 
li 
i 
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A. l'• Robert H. Graham. I am e•ployed by 

6 Q. Are you the same Robert H. Graham who 

1 caused to be prefiled certain direct testimony identified as 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 I 
21 

Exhibit 15 and certain rebuttal testimony identified as 

Exhibit 16? 

A. I am. 

Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to 

make to your prefiled direct or rebuttal testimony? 

A. In the direct testimony I refer to the 

communications with the customers, and they were expanded 

upon this morning, the additional communication that would 

be sent to the customers regarding the public hearing. 

Q. Do you have any other changes or corrections 

to make to the prefiled direct or rebuttal testimony? 

A. I do not. 

Q. Other than this one addition which you just 

indicated, if you were asked these same questions today 

22 which are in Exhibit 15 and 16, would your answers still be 

same? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you wish to adopt Exhibits IS aad 16 as 
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II 
<11 to Mr. yesterd~y which we could go through now. A 

s more have been referred to him today, which I kind of 

6 need to get in order, so we could approach it in one of two 

1 lways. I could ask him the questions first which were 

8 referred to him yesterday and then come back on redirect and 

9 ask him the questions which were referred to him today, or 

10 we could wait until redirect to address all of those. Do 

11 you have a preference? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: You may proceed with the 

questions from yesterday. 

BY MS. LATZ: 

Q. Mr. Graham, there were several questions 

asked yesterday about the customer National Starch who 

replaced CPC when it was sold. Concerning that customer, 

one of the questions which was asked, Have we ever have done 

anything or talked with National Starch about converting to 

an electric heating system? 

A. We initially looked at their system or their 

loads when we found that they were going to take over or 

23 purchase the plant from CPC. And we explored putting in an 

24 electrode boiler at their location to satisfy their steam 

25 needs at that time. 
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w IJ Q. Have recent conversation~ 
'I 
;11~Hh l about ~hat their phn1 for the hcuating 
I' il tea are, hU phns for the heating sy1te11? 
d 

4 ll A. We have talked about what their phns are 

s 11J betond the ur• of the contract, and they say they sti 11 

& I have it under study, that they have not 11ade a decision at 

1 this time. 

8 Q. What would the summer load of. National 

9 !Starch be? 

10 A. They are running about 30,000, 30,000 to 

11 40,000 Mlbs. per hour. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q. There was a question yesterday which talked 

about linking together some of the city buildings. And a 

study was referred to which the city asked Kansas City 

Power & Light to prepare. Do you have some additional 

comments about that study that you could make which were not 

able to be supplied yesterday? 

A. Yes. The city of Kansas City, Missouri, 

asked us to take a look at the government buildings, which 

20 !would be the state, the federal, the county, and city 

21 ;j buildings. I think there's some nine buildings in an area 

22 1·,
1
adjacent--relatively close to each other. 

23 I, And the study was to see if it would be more 
II 

24 !leconomical to have one regional boiler. if you will, or 

25 1
1
1boiler plant to serve those cestomers as opposed to 
! 

!I 
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Q. There was another question asked yesterday 

8 concerning any kind of requirement that the owners of these 

9 electric boilers in their own buildings might have to comply 

10 with. Do you have any idea of what kinds of requirements 

11 there are for owners of electric boilers? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A. It's dependant upon the pressure. If they 

have 15 pounds of pressure, like all these boilers now that 

we were putting in, there is no requirement for an operator 

or anything different than they would have to maintain their 

existing steam system throughout their building. 

Q. A question was also asked yesterday 

concerning the effect on the summer load given that all of 

the steam customers that we have would choose to take part 

in our plan and install electric boilers. There was some 

testimony on that this morning also, but I b~lieve we 

deferred to you if you have an exact figure of what this 

23 de.crease in summer load would be? 

24 

25 

A. Our summer load goes down to, like, 10,000 

to 20,000 pounds per hour. and that would be on the order of 

210 
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Q. Tb-r• was also a question yesterday 

ns the hderal but ldlnas t l f they have indicated to 

4 us any intent of leavlna or changing their heating system? 

A. None that we know of. We have checked with 

6 IGSA as recently as this week, and they have stated that they 

1 are waiting until the order comes down in this case to see 

8 what their options are. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Q. And I took note of one final question from 

yesterday. Was National Starch a customer of the company 

before they bought the CPC facilities? 

A. Certainly not as a steam customer or as a 

substantial customer. They may have had a sales office or 

something in Kansas City, but they operated no plant in our 

15 service territory. 

16 MS. LATZ: I' 11 reserve offering 

17 Mr. Graham's testimony since he is scheduled to be on the 

18 stand at a later date and will now tender him for cross-

19 examination. 

20 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Walther. 

21 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. WALTHER: 

22 I Q. Good morning, Mr. Graham. 

Good morning. 

Mr. Graham, in the event that KCPL's 

is approved, how .any KCPL employees would 

23 I A. 

241 Q. 

25 ~!conversion plan 

'I I' J Zll 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

lhr 

1\. ... l t on :n~cce:~s 1 Wilt U' • 
a ln. 1t would be rtlonate to 

r ihu. We think thlt y one 

technician can bly e anywhere from 20 to 30, but 

need more e~perience as the numbers would get larger. 

Q. On a total company basis, that being steam 

electric, isn't it true that National Starch is a better 

customer for KCPL than Corn Products? In other words, does 

National Starch use more electricity than Corn Products? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Am I correct that your job is Kansas City 

Power & Light Company's director of commercial operations? 

A. That was my title up until January 1. I 

have essentially the same responsibilities but a little 

different title now. 

Q. In your position do you have responsibility 

18 over the company's commercial operations offices? 

:: II 
A. In Missouri, yes, I do. 

Q. And do these offices have the responsibility 

21 I for new customers of Kansas City Power & Light Company? 

22 A. Yes, they do. 

23 Q. Could you briefly describe what that 

24 responsibility involves? 

25 A. Well, in the case of a new customer, once we 
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of a cust011er wantlna new 1enice. we contact 

cultot~ert find out aU the infort1u1tlon we can, who will 

job, what the size of the project is, get a time 

4 ! schedule. And at that time we would also try to find out 

s what his--in determining loads we would determine whether or 

6 lnot he's going to use electric heat and so forth. We would 

1 !offer to make any energy analysis and rate analysis based on 

8 the systems that he intended to use. 

9 Q. Are they concerned with your large 

10 commercial and industrial customers as well as residential? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. Do these large commercial and industrial 

13 accounts include steam customers? 

14 A. Yes, they do. 

15 Q. So is it correct that Kansas City Power and 

16 Light Company's marketing of steam is conducted under your 

17 supervision? 

18 A. That's correct. 

19 I Q. Does 

20 !!commercial operation 

21 I' 
221 

Kansas City Power and Light Company's 

department prepare functional plans? 

A. 

Q. 

23 !lof those plans? 
II 

24 1 

25! ,, 
A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And are you responsible for the preparation 

Yes. 

Could you briefly explaia what functional 

lj 
II :!IS 
L----------------------------~ 
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9 

10 

11 pursue 

Q. How do you go about preparing those? Do you 

talk with upper level management, or do you develop 

objectives yourself for your own--

A. Well, you look at the corporate goals and 

objectives and then develop the goals and objectives in your 

particular area that will support the corporate goals and 

11 !objectives. 

12 Q. How often are they prepared? 

13 A. They've been prepared annually for the last 

14 several years. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. Is it correct that in June of 1985 

Kansas City Power & Light Company informed its steam 

customers that it was seeking alternatives to central steam 

service? 

A. In June of '85, that's correct. We had a 

meeting with all our steam customers at their invitation. 

Q. In the history of Kansas City Power & Light 

22 l steam system, are you aware if there has ever been a 
I . 

• ,3 I 
L I marketing department dedicated solely to marketing steam? 

24 A. No, not solely, at least in my time. There 

25 were at times where I think an engineer was assigned that 
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siJ! A. Yes. 
•II 

6 ~~ Q. Would I be correct if I said that the 
l 

i\:co~pany steam marketing program consists of providing 
~I 

8 !I potential customers with rate schedules and in some cases 
q 

9~~doing rate calculations for those customers? 

10 !! A. That's not all. We would be involved in 
li 

11 energy analysis. We might help the customer develop the 

12 loads of the building so that we could do a proper energy 

13 .I analysis. 

14 Q. Are these energy analysis that you're 

15 referring to generally done in response to an inquiry by the 

16 customer? 

17 A. At the time of the initial contact we would 

18 volunteer to do this. And it depends upon the customer, how 

19 sophisticated he is or what kind of people he has employed 

20 to help him develop this project. In some cases they come 

21 with loads that have already been studied and a pretty 

22 complete analysis. Others have nothing more than just a 

23 concept of the building. 

24 Q. Do you often find--let me rephrase the 

25 question. 

lOS 
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10 

follow on that or 

U$t 10 wl 

any r? 

A. I think we would always review the aspects 

of both systems. We're always competing against gas. We 

would always want to be sure that our most competitive 

system was being considered. 

MR. WALTHER: Could I have this marked as 

11 Exhibit 21 for purposes of identification? 

12 (EXHIBIT NO. 21 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

13 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

14 MR. WALTHER: Let the record reflect that I 

15 am showing Exhibit 21 for purposes of identification to 

16 counsel. 

17 EXAMINER HOGERTY: It will so reflect. 

18 BY MR. WALTHER: 

19 Q. Mr. Graham, I'm handing you what has been 

20 marked as Exhibit No. 21 for purposes of identification. 

21 1hhere are two sheets in that exhibit. Would you identify 

2211that, please. 

23 lj A. This is Data Request 199 (sic) from the 

24[1 Staff. 

25 ,, MS. LATZ: Your Honor, I believe I have a 

Ill _jl 
I 206 t 

li--------·---------------------------------------------------
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f t r ~t f i * 

Q. 

A. 

1 Q. 

8 signature--

9 A.. 

10 Q. 

MR ~AtTlfiH~: l ~Hov~ H•1 191. 

1.91? 

Yes. 

Would you identify--I'm sorry. Is that your 

That's correct. 

--on the bottom of the page. And is that a 

11 jtrue and accurate copy of what you sent Staff in response to 

12 their data request, I mean the second page? 

13 A.. Yes, that's correct. 

14 MR. WALTHER: At this time I'd like to ask 

15 that Exhibit 21 for purposes of identification be admitted 

16 as Exhibit 21. 

17 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Exhibit 21 is received. 

18 
(EXHIBIT NO. 21 WAS RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE AND 

19 MADE A PART OF THIS RECORD.) 

20 I BY MR. WALTHER: 

21 I Q. Mr. Graham, would you read--on the first 

22 ' page of Exhibit 21 would you read into the record the two 

23 questions that Staff asked? 

24 A. The first question is, For companies, 

25 builders, and developers that decided to go totally electric 
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6 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

the County Jail) wu then ever 

between ICPL and the companies. builders, and 

alternative sources of power (e.g. Steam 

vs. All Blectrlc vs. Gas). If so, was there any other 

consideration to ao to steam versus electric? What was 

KCPL's involvement or input? 

Q. Would you read the answer that you provided 

to Staff? 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Walther, since that 

matter is already in the record, I don't think it is 

necessary to ask the witness to read it into the record. 

You could ask him questions on that. 

BY MR. WALTHER: 

Q. Would you agree that the answer on Page 2 

provides a typical scenario as to Kansas City Power & Light 

17 Company's approach to the marketing of steam? 

18 A. Pardon me. I was looking at the--

19 Q. Would you agree that the answer you provided 

20 'Staff, which is Page 2 of Exhibit 21, describes the typical 

21 !approach of Kansas City Power & Light Company regarding the 

22 marketing of steam? 

23 j A. I think it is general. 
I 

24 I Q. Would you identify Corn Products Corporation 

25 J

1
for the record, please. 

I· 
l 
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a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

! 
customer? 

Q. 

A. ny t 

Q. Was Corn Products a large base load steam 

A. Oh. yes. 

Q. What is the significance of having a large 

base load steam customer on a system such as Kansas City 

Power & Light Company's steam system? 

A. Well, to give you base load, to give you 

t 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

load around the clock every day of the year. And this was 

very significant in that the operation of plant was much 

more efficient. It brought the load levels up to where you 

could burn coal year around and lower your fuel costs 

significantly. You could spread the cost of operating the 

181 plant and the system over a greater number of pounds 

19 'II therefore reducing the cost for each pound. 

20 I Q. So you would agree that a customer such as 

21 !Corn Products was a very positive thing for the system as 

22 11 well as for the other customers of the system? 

23\j A. Yes, I would. 

2411 Q. In 1981 was Corn Products outside of 

25 ~~~ansas City Power ' Light Coopany's downtown steaa syst .. 

~ zu 
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Q, 

not 

&$ Corn Products to its steam 

A. Well, you mean due to its location? 

8 Q. Just in general. 

9 A. Well, we always were looking for a high load 

10 factor, high load customer for the system. We had had 

11 I others adjacent to the plant such as Schlitz Brewery. It 

12 
1 

had been a high load factor, high use customer before it 

13 left. And, yes, we were always looking for that type of a 

14 customer. 

15 Q. Did Kansas City Power & Light Company 

16 consider not adding Corn Products? 

17 A. Well, the big problem with Corn Products was 

18 the fact that it was remote and outside of our service 

19 territory, plus the Missouri River was in between. And 

20 anybody's ability to get a line across a bridge to serve it 

21 
1 

was-··have always been of great concern. 

22 MR. WALTHER: Will you please mark this as 

23 Exhibit 22 for purposes of identification. 

24 (EXHIBIT NO. 22 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

25 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
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Q. Mr. , could you identify this 

1 A. I don't have one. 

s Q. I'm sorry. I'm handing you what's been 

9 marked as Exhibit No. 22 for purposes of identification. 

10 Could you identify that document? 

11 A. It seems to be a Kansas City Power & Light 

12 memorandum to J. R. Miller. It's signed by J. M. Evans. 

13 Q. What is the position of Mr. Miller? 

14 A. He's the senior vice-president of 

15 operations. 

16 Q. And what is the position of Mr. Evans 

17 within the company? 

18 A. I think he is vice-president of production, 

19 SPO. 

20 
21 I 

Q. Do you recognize the signature? 

A. I assume that's his signature. I'm not that 

2211 familiar 

23 I 

with it. 

Q. You have no reason to believe that's not his 

24 signature? 

25 A. I have no reason to think otherwise. 

211 
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HOGERTY: E~hib\t 22 l~ received. 

(EXHIBIT NO. 22 WAS RECEIVED IN EVIDENCE AND 

A PART OF THIS RECORD.) 

7 BY MR. WAl.THBR: 

s Q. 1 refer you on Exhibit 22 to the first page 

9 under the heading Steam Service to Corn Products. And take 

10 time to read that answer or to read that portion of the 

11 letter. 

12 Before going any further, what is the date 

13 on that letter? 

14 A. January the 21st, 1981. 

15 Q. Does that--am I correct in saying that that 

16 paragraph contains basically what you answered before 

17 regarding the company's decision as to--or the 

18 considerations they looked at in deciding whether or not to 

19 serve Corn Products? 

20 A. Well, he had concern about crossing the 

21 bridge and the river crossing and the fact that there was no 

22 direct obligation to serve. 

23 Q. Am I correct in saying that the last 

24 sentence of that paragraph, that first paragraph under the 

25 heading Steam Service to Corn Pr6ducts, the last sentence 
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10 

11 
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13 
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15 

16 

t>tatei" ~w vl thh 

Uo~ to $erve :should scouuaed at this Use'*? 

A. What wu the question? 

Q. All 1 correct in stating that the last 

sentence of that paragraph states, "New sarket penetration 

together with this obligation to serve should be discouraged 

at this time"? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Graham, would you agree in the early 

part of the 1980s Kansas City Power & Light Company improved 

the operation and maintenance of its steam system? 

A. Yes, I think the testimony shows that, 

starting in '82 particularly. 

Q. What was the marketing approach of the 

company during the period it was upgrading its system? 

A. Well, I don't know that it changed 

17 substantially. We had always marketed whatever was our most 

18 competitive situation, whether it be steam or electric. And 

19 based on the customer preference also, we felt at one time 

20 I that if Corn Products provided us the load that will let us 

21 be more competitive, that we would be in a position to try 

22 to recoup some of the load that we had lost. But then 

23 I before that situation really developed, Corn Products 

24 disappeared. 

25 Q. Would you aaree that duriaa the time--or 

Ul 
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MR. WALTHER: Would you please mark this as 

B~bibit 23 for purposes of identification. And let the 

, record reflect 

9 ~~identification 
10 

that I am showing Exhibit 23 for purposes of 

to counsel. 

(EXHIBIT NO. 23 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

11 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

12 BY MR. WALTHER: 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q. Mr. Graham, I'm handing you what has been 

marked as Exhibit 23 for purposes of identification. Would 

you please identify that document? 

A. Yes. It's Data Request No. 578, steam case 

17 IH0-86-139, dated January 23, 1987. 

18 Q. And is that your signature on the second 

19 page of Exhibit 23 for purposes of identification? 

20 A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Is this a true and accurate copy of what you 

22 sent Staff? 

23 A. Yes, it would appear that it is. 

24 MR. WALTHER: At this tiae I'd like to aove 

25 that Exhibit 23 for purposes of identificatioR be adaitted 
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WALTHER: 

Q. 

( NO. H WAS 

R.BCORD.) 

IN BVIDBNCB AND 

I'd like to refer you to Question No. 1 on 

1 1 Exhibit 23. You refer to the new construction in downtown 

s Kansas City starting with the City Center Square to the most 

9 recent projects. When was City Center Square constructed? 

10 A. I think in the late '70s. 1977 I believe it 

11 went on line. 

12 Q. And when--you refer from City Center Square 

13 to the most recent projects. When were the most recent 

14 projects constructed? 

15 A. They're still under construction. One 

16 Kansas City Place is still under construction, and it's 

17 supposed to be completed early next year. AT&T, it is just 

18 now opening for business. It's been completed for a few 

19 months. 

20 II 
21 ~~~ A. 
22 !three years, I believe. It went on in 1983. 

23 I' Q. So it was being constructed in the early 

24 1! '80s? 
II 

251 

Q. 

A. 

When was Jackson County Jail constructed? 

Jackson County Jail, it's been on about 

At least the plaaai•l· It probably took a 

us 
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lon 1. 

ExaMiner, I'M just going 

brief sentence into the record. 

THE WITNESS: As steam from the distribution 

1 rlost its competitive position in the latter part of this 

8 j period, the em·phasis on marketing turned to electric heat. 

9 As I stated earlier we always tried to be as 

10 competitive as we could because we're always selling our 

11 I products against gas. If the cost of the steam operation of 

12 a building were greater than the electric, you're going to 

13 push the electric. You could hardly go to a customer and 

14 suggest to him that he should use a system that had the 

15 greater total cost of owning and operating. 

16 Q. So you would agree that your emphasis at 

17 this point turned to electric heat? 

18 A.. I think we were forced to offer electric 

19 heat as an alternative to steam when steam became more 

20 expensive. There were other things that changed other than 

21 I, just the cost of the product. Thera was the design of the 

221 buildings. The improvement in the heating and cooling 

23 1 systems of a building changed rather dramatically where they 

24 !lutili%ed a lot of the heat that was generated within the 
II 

25 11 core of the building to offset the scant losses in 
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Could you ple~se ma 

l ification. And aaaln let 

ect that l am showing Exhibit 24 for purposes 

lflcation to counsel. 

BXAMINBR HOGERTY: It will so reflect. 

(EXHIBIT NO. 24 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

8 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

9 BY MR. WALTHER: 

10 Q. Mr. Graham, I'm handing you a copy of what 

11 has been marked as Exhibit No. 24 for purposes of 

12 identification. It contains two pages, the first page 

13 being the cover page; the second page being a narrative. 

14 Could you identify Exhibit 24 for purposes of 

15 identification? 

16 A. The first page is the cover of the KCPLAN, 

17 Revision One, February 1984. The second page is titled 

18 Executive Summary. 

19 Q. Are you familiar with the KCPLAN? 

20 A. Well, yes. I read it when it came out. I'd 

21 

22 

have to refresh my memory on this. 

23 I accurate 

24 

I 
25 1 

I 

,J 

Q. But to your knowledge this is a true and 

copy of the KCPLAN? 

A. It would appear to be. 

MR. WALTHER: At this time I'd like to move 

217 
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OV U Blbl t 24. 

EX.AMI NBR HOGBRTY: lb:hl bit 24 i 5 ned 

(EXHIBIT NO. 24 WAS IVED IN BVIDBNCB AND 

MADB A PART Of THIS RECORD.) 

BY MR. WALTHER: 

Q. Mr. Graham, what is the KCPLAN? What is the 

function of the KCPLAN? 

A. Well, as the title suggests, it's the 

long-range system expansion alternative studies. This one 

covered from '83 to 2002. 

Q. So it sets the long-range goals for the 

company? It sets the direction the company wishes to go? 

A. In relation to the system. 

Q. And what was the purpose of the '84 

revision? I believe there was an '81 plan. 

A. I'm not absolutely certain other than I 

believe the KCPLAN is periodicly updated. 

Q. I'd like to refer you to the Executive 

Summary that is Page 2 of Exhibit 24. And under the heading 

of Purpose, after the first paragraph, does the--am I 

correct in stating that it says that the KCPLAN '83 retains 

the fundmental goals of the KCPLAN '81? 

A. Yes, I've read it. Was there a question? 

Q. Yes. That is what it says, am I correct? 

Ul 
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A. Yes, that's correct. 

Q. So this plan which was reiterated in the '84 

revision was also contained in the 1981 KCPLAN? 

A. Apparently it was. 

Q. Mr. Graham, just for the record would you 

briefly explain the term "electric load"? 

A. The electric load here we're talking about 

the demand on the electrical system. 

Q. And would you explain the term "steam load"? 

Am I correct in saying that it's demand on the steam system? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When is your period of peak steam load? 

A. During the coldest part of the winter. 

Q. And when is your period of off peak electric 

load? 

A. During the winter, same time--not 

necessarily the same time. Probably our lowest peak demand 

on electrical system is in the fall or the spring. 

Q. But the period of off peak electrical load 

does overlap with your period of peak steam load? 

A. That's correct. 

U9 
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24 

25 

CUUOI!li~U to ~hct rh: CUitllfi~U 

llllhctrh: l 

A. If th1t were to occur. yes. 

conv~rlion 

d incnue f 

BXAMINBR HOGBRTY: Mr. Walther, we'll be in 

recess until 1:15. 

(The noon recess was taken.) 
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Mr. W~Hhu. 

MR. WALTHER: T just a few 

~~,ff~~~BXAMlNATION (CONTINUED) BY MR. WALTHER: 

Q. Mr. Graham, would you agree that in August 

of 1984 the Kansas City Power & Light Company made a 

'determination not to encourage the connection of new steam 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

customers to its steam system? 

A. As of what date? 

Q. August of 1984. 

A. I don't think we really said we would not 

hook up any more customers at that time. Certainly when we 

filed the plan and announced to the customers that we were 

going to go into a proposed phaseout plan was when we 

actually quit taking new steam customers. 

Q. But would you agree that there was a 

decision made not to encourage--not to go after--

A. Once we were considering--once we felt with 

the loss of Corn Products and the reduced loads of National 

Starch, we became aware of the fact that it probably was not 

going to be a real good choice, so we weren't actively 

looking for particularly commercial customers to come on 

which would be low load factor. Had their been another high 
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Q. 

A. I don't know lf that was really any 

I think that was just something that developed. 

To say that there was one day we came out and announced and 

said we're never going to encourage any more steam 

customers, I don't believe I recall that happening just like 

that. 

(EXHIBIT NO. 25 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

MR. WALTHER: Let the record reflect that 

I'm showing opposing counsel and other counsel Exhibit 25 

for purposes of identification. 

BY MR. WALTHER: 

Q. Mr. Graham, I'm handing you what has been 

marked as Exhibit 25 for purposes of identification. Could 

you identify that document? 

A. It's dated August 3, 1984. It's a 

Kansas City Power & Light memorandum from B. J. Beaudoin to 

A. J. Doyle and other officers and managers, directors at 

Power & Light. 

Q. And did you receive a copy of this? 

A. This is--my name is checked off, and I am on 

to whom it was directed. 
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11 tb~t Mr. leaudoln'l 1l1n~ture! 

A. tt would r so. ye1. 

MR. WALTHIR: At this ti•e 1 would like to 

lxblbit ZS into evidence. 

BXAMINIR HOGBRTY: Bxhiblt 25 is received. 

(EXHIBIT NO. 25 WAS RECEIVED IN !VIDENCE AND 

MADE A PART OF THIS RECORD.) 

BY MR. WALTHER: 

Q. Mr. Graham, I would like to refer you to the 

last page of Exhibit No. 25. I think it's Page 4 of the 

memorandum. And I refer you to the last two lines on that 

last page. Would you agree that that memorandum states-­

and I quote--"KCPL will no longer encourage the connection 

of 'new' steam customers to the downtown network"? 

A. Yes, that's what it says. 

Q. Mr. Graham, are you aware of any rumors that 

were circulating among your downtown steam customers in the 

early 1980s that Kansas City Power & Light Company was 

contemplating abandoning or terminating its steam system? 

A. Not specifically. I'm sure there is always 

talk about it. I think it was public knowledge that the 

generation would eventually be phased out of Grand Avenue, 

and there was concern about what would happen to the steam 

system and the price of steam. 

Q. Would you concede t~en t~at there may very 
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A. Wellp llke J said, with the phaseout of 

Avenue as an electrogenerating station, it would 

be some concern, I think. 

Q. When were Jackson County jail and the Vista 

Hotel connected to the steam system? 

A. Well, the Vista International went on in 

December 1984. It may have been connected prior to that, 

but that is the date that the service was put in the Vista 

International's name. And the Jackson County jail or 

detention center was connected November 1983. 

Q. Did Kansas City Power & Light Company give 

any consideration to not connecting those customers to the 

system? 

A. I don't believe it did. The commitment had 

been made on those back probably around 1980, '81. 

Q. But in that 1980, '81 timeframe, did they 

give any consideration to not serving these customers? Did 

they explore the possibility as to whether they would not 

have to serve these customers? 

A. Well, I think there is--I think you have 

memos. We even looked at one this morning where we 

------------------------------------
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\1. So \t 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Ms. Bjelland. 

EXAMINATION BY MS. BJELLAND: 

Q. Mr. Graham, I just have a couple questions. 

Referring to the decision to add Corn 

Products to the steam line, do you have any idea or can you 

give me an estimate of the cost to run the line to them 

across the river and what it cost to hook them up? 

A. That line was designed and paid for by 

Corn Products, and we believe it was something over 

$3 million. 

r 

Q. The entire cost of adding them to the system 

was paid for by Corn Products? 

A. As far as the line extension, it was all--

they take service at our property line. 

Q. And then if you could please refer to Page 7 

of your testimony. Beginning with the question on Line 13, 

you refer to the energy audits that have been performed and 

those yet to be performed. Can you tell me if the ten 

audits that you referred to that were in progress at the 

time you filed your testimony have been completed! 

25 ! A. Yes~ they have. 
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to the 28 audits which, accord1ng 

• were unscheduled at that time, has the 

audits changed and to what extent? 

A. Yes, it has. I think in total we performed 

about 104 audits. 

Q. And how many are outstanding as of this date? 

A. We have completed all audits that have been 

12 requested; and we contacted customers to see if any 

13 additional of those few remaining desired an audit, and they 

14 do not. 

15 MS. BJELLAND: Thank you. I have no further 

16 questions. 

17 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Finnegan. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FINNEGAN: 

Q. Following up on the question with the 

audits, how much did these audits cost? 

A. I think it cost a little over $400,000. 

Q. And who was bearing the cost of these 

audits? The electric ratepayers? The steam ratepayers? 

the stockholders? 

A. I don't know how it's accounted for. 

Or 
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A. Thlt's correct. 

Q. Were they instructed not to consider gas 

boUers as an alternative to the replacement of steam? 

A. Our instructions to them was to, you know, 

audit the building and come up with an electrical 

replacement system. They were not directed to perform any 

audits for gas. 

Q. The other day I asked a question--yesterday 

12 I guess it was--for Mr. Beaudoin about how many customers 

13 have left the system in the last five years and how many 

14 have gone to gas and how many have gone to electricity. You 

indicated you--15 

16 

17 

A. I think we've lost about 40-some customers. 

Since '81, we've lost, I think, 42 customers to electric or 

18 gas. 

19 

I believe six of those went on electric. 

Q. These were existing customers; is that 

20 correct? 

21 A. Yes, they were. 

22 Q. And how many new customers were added in 

23 that same period, in '81? 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

To the steam system! 

Yes. 
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A. Yes. 
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f j 

Missouri Court of Appeals building 

Q. There is reference to it in Exhibit 22, but 

comments on it at this point or in this exhibit. 

10 That would also be considered a new building then? 

11 A. Yes, it would. I don't recall when it went 

12 on line though. I don't know how far back that went. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q. Referring to Exhibit 22 and with reference 

to the two paragraphs relating to steam service for 

Jackson County jail, looking at Paragraph 1 it appears 

that--

A. Pardon me. Exhibit 22, what's--

Q. This is the memo to J. R. Miller dated 

January 21, '81. 

A. Okay. Thank you. 

Q. I'm sorry. 

A. I didn't have mine. 

Q. Do you have it now? With reference to the 

24 steam service for Jackson County jail, there is two 

25 paragraphs relating to that; is that correct! 
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4 thu n~ c~ be re to this customer~ is that 

s correct 

6 A. Yes, that appears to be the conclusion. 

7 ,,Yes. 

8 Q. And in the second paragraph, you indicate 

9 that the customer ought to be advised that future cost of 

10 steam might be rather high? 

11 

12 

13 
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22 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does this appear to reflect some aggressive 

marketing efforts on behalf of the steam department to seek 

new customers? 

A. I think it's an effort to be very fair with 

the customer and to advise them what our true situation was 

and what they might be exposed to in the future. 

Q. Would this not appear to be a decision not 

to encourage more steam customers or this particular steam 

customer at this time? 

A. I think it's an effort to let the customer 

know the true situation so they can't come back later and 

23 say, "Hey, you tied us into an old system and didn't warn 

24 us. It 

25 Q. Now, in Exhibit 23, which is Data Request 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

6 

1 

8 

9 

10 

re\'~nue • of It 

A. Ye\!t. 

Q. Are the~e annual revenues and annual Mlbs. 

$teaa that are projected for these buildings? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. With respect to the transmission line that 

CPC built across the Missouri River, do you know what the 

capacity of that line is? 

A. Well, their peak load was anticipated to be 

11 250,000 pounds an hour. And I believe it was designed to 

12 carry that and, I would assume, with some safety factor. 

13 Q. And do you know how much of that capacity is 

14 now being used? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. The load now of National Starch is in the 

order of 40,000 pounds an hour. 

Q. On Page 5 of your direct testimony, starting 

on Line 12, you make a statement that "It was anticipated 

that electric heating rates should remain around current 

levels or possibly decrease, as the Company had requested a 

decrease in the electric heating rate in its pending rate 

case." Did that occur? Were you granted a decrease in your 

electric heating rate? 

A. We went to, I think, 3.691 and we had been 

more like about 3.9--3.8, 3.9. 

231 
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Q rec~nt settlement of 

Y•~r f c~~e. what ls to 

electrlc heat\na rate? 

A. l leve the electric heating rate would 

rece\ the same increase as all the rest of the 

And in this cas~, l think this results in there only 

2 percent increase on the heating rate. 

S Q. On Page 6 of your rebuttal testimony, 

9 starting at Line 9, you make a statement that" .•• steam 

10 has not been competitive in many instances with other forms 

11 of heating energy." Are you referring here to gas? 

12 A. Gas and electric. 

13 Q. You're saying that steam presently is not 

14 competitive with the electric rate? 

15 A. You have to consider the total concept on 

16 a Btu per Btu basis; utilizing resistance heat, the cost 

17 might be greater. Using electric--when you consider the 

18 total system and the configuration of the heating and 

19 cooling systems, it often becomes more economical to go 

20 total electric, as was the decision made by the consultant 

21 that did like the AT&T pavilion. 

22 Q. So you're saying on a million Btu basis, 

23 electric would still cost more than the steam; but they're 

24 due to reconfigurations of the heating of the building 

25 itself? It may save energy costs? 

231 
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3 Q. 

4 A. 
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6 have. 

1 

8 

9 Mr. Graham. 

10 

11 

12 

13 excused. 

14 

15 

On 

lc nu h bi 

bud. s, y~s. 

MR. FINNEGAN: That's all the questions I 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Kennett. 

MR. KENNETT: I have no questions of 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Any redirect? 

MS. LATZ: No questions. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: The witness may be 

(Witness excused.) 

16 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, that completes 

17 KCPL's direct case on the steam termination issues. 

18 There were two questions that had been 

19 asked, and none of the three witnesses that were up here 

20 were familiar with them. They have to do with a reflection 

21 of termination charges from the CPC contract and the cost of 

22 audits. 

23 As the Commission knows, KCPL and Staff have 

24 agreed upon a $3.2 million revenue deficiency figure which 

25 is based upon Staff's cost of service aodels. On Staff 
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EXAMINER HOGERTY: Thank you. 

MR. ENGLISH: You're welcome. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Staff may call its 

11 witness. 

12 MS. YOUNG: Staff would call Mr. Cary 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Featherstone to the stand. 

(Witness sworn.) 

CARY G. FEATHERSTONE testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. YOUNG: 

record. 

Q. Would you please state your name for the 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Cary G. Featherstone. 

By whom are you employed, Mr. Featherstone? 

Missouri Public Service Commission. 

Are you the same Cary Featherstone who has 

24 caused to be filed in this case direct testimony which has 

25 been marked as Exhibit No. 17» rebuttal testimony which has 

233 
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A. 
Q. Do h~ve any correction! or to 

t testlaony at this t 

A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. If I were to ask you the questions that 

appear in those documents now, would your answers be the 

same as they appear therein? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do you adopt that as your prefiled 

testimony in this case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, this morning Mr. Mandacina 

testified regarding a meeting between Staff and the company 

representative regarding the test boiler program. Were you 

present at the meeting referred to by Mr. Mandacina? 

A. No, I was not. 

Q. Were you aware of the meeting? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how did you learn of that meeting or why 

were you aware of it? 

A. As I recall, the company notified the 

Commission's Staff that they wanted to come down to see 

them. And we were tied up in the--it was December 1984. We 
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S ,, Q. And in the course of the audit of this case, 
I 

6 :did the Staff obtain any documents from the company's files 

1 relating to that meeting? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. And what was the nature of that document? 

10 A. They were the handwritten notes by Mr. Bob 

11 Graham who was also in attendance for the company in that 

12 meeting. 

13 Q. I'll hand you a document, Mr. Featherstone, 

14 and ask if you can identify that as the document that you 

15 have just described for the record? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 MS. YOUNG: And I would like to have that 

18 document marked as an exhibit. 

19 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Exhibit 26. 

20 (EXHIBIT NO. 26 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

21 FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

22 BY MS. YOUNG: 

23 Q. How do you know that these are the notes of 

24 Mr. Graham! 

25 A. 
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f hi. 

Q. Don t to ~n nunt or ~re 

n~ue which ti i lc1t~ to the 

wa~ to 'I this to 111 customers or it 

be direct to specific customers? 

MR. ENGLISH: Objection. The document 

for itself. 

MS. YOUNG: That's fine, your Honor. 

BY MS. YOUNG: 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, to your knowledge, has the 

meeting in question ever been the subject of testimony 

before this Commission in the past? 

A. Yes. Mr. Cochran, who is an engineer with 

the Commission's Staff, testified with regard to the test 

projects in the KCPL/Wolf Creek audit in E0-85-185. 

MS. YOUNG: If I could have another exhibit 

marked, Madam Examiner. I have available a copy of that 

portion of the transcript from the cases referred to by 

Mr. Featherstone wherein Mr. Cochran's testimony on that 

20 subject appears. 

21 (EXHIBIT NO. 27 WAS MARKED BY THE REPORTER 

22 

23 

24 

25 

FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 

BY MS. YOUNG: 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, have you reviewed all or 

a part of the transcript, Volume No. 16, from Case 
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Pve revi 

to 

85 U<t 

rt it. 

t of your knowledge, is this 

an accurate copy of the numbered pages that appear here? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Thank you. 

MS. YOUNG: Madam Examiner, if I may, there 

is one other area that we've had some questions I think from 

both the Bench and counsel regarding the company's 

intentions as to Grand Avenue Station and whether the 

contribution is intended to be all or just a portion of the 

property there. 

At this time I would like to explore with 

Mr. Featherstone what information the Staff has on that 

subject since the company witnesses did not--were not able 

to answer the questions. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: You may proceed. 

BY MS. YOUNG: 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, after the announcement of 

the company's intent to donate Grand Avenue Station to the 

Friends of the Aquarium, did the Staff request and have a 

meeting with Mr. Doyle, the chief officer of the company? 

A. Yes. I think the meeting was sometime in 

the latter part of January of this year. 

Q. And what is your understanding of the 
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3 A. 1t was tiY lna in ulUna with 

4 MT. le that his Intention was to give only the land and 

5 .the power plant, the land underneath the power plant and 

6 that the coal yard and the facilities around the power plant 

1 he had still claim to. He had no intentions of providing 

8 that to the Friends of the Aquarium. And it is also the 

9 electric substation which would still stay in the electric 

10 rate base. 

11 

12 

Q. Thank you. 

MS. YOUNG: I have no further questions on 

13 direct and would tender the witness for cross-examination. 

14 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, according to the 

15 Hearing Memorandum, KCPL is the only adverse party to 

16 Mr. Featherstone; and therefore, I request that I be 

17 allowed to go last on cross-examination. 

18 EXAMINER HOGERTY: That's fine. 

19 

20 

21 questions. 

Ms. Bjelland. 

MS. BJELLAND: Public Counsel has no 

22 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Finnegan. 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FINNEGAN: 

24 Q. Mr. Featherstone, just a couple of 

25 questions. I just heard Mr. Grahaa testify that on a Btu 

Zll 
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casu ltt~sl. 
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t the qucH»t!on, 

Q. On a Btu basis, the steam in 

Ci costs less than electricity? 

A. I believe--let me check. I believe it does. 

Steam in Kansas City costs less--

Q. On a Btu basis. 

A. --on a Btu basis? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have any differentials in that or 

what the relative costs are? 

A. When we looked at the information that was 

addressed in Mr. Beaudoin's rebuttal testimony, we looked at 

the test projects. And it was his claim that if the steam 

bills were charged at the electric rate, that they would be 

less than what would have been billed at the steam rate. 

And we did an analysis that when you look 

at--including taxes for the--including the electricity tax-­

gross receipts taxes and sales taxes, that in one instance 

the home savings is--the steam rate is less than the 

electric; and in the three other instances for the project 

boilers that are currently in service. that they were 

marginally higher, the steam bills would have been higher. 

---------------------------~· ·-
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Q. Mr. Mandacina testified today that gas rates 
d 
:iw•r• hi er in St. Louis than Kansas City. 

1 ,!knowledge as to that? 

Do you have any 

a A. Yes. When you look at the differential, the 

9 tariffs between Laclede and KPL Gas Service, on MCF basis, 

10 Mr. Mandacina is correct that they are higher on MCF basis 

11 alone by 36 cents. In other words, the Kansas City rate is 

12 $4.23 on an MMBtu basis; and for a small customer, the 

13 Laclede rate is $4.59. However, the customer charge is 

14 greater in Kansas City so that you need to look at it on a 

15 billed basis. 

16 We've looked at it on a small, medium, and 

17 large customer. And for a small customer, the rates, the 

18 natural gas rates, on a comparable basis would be $277 

19 higher in downtown St. Louis. And on a medium customer, 

20 they would be $1,188 higher. And on a large customer, they 

21 would be $6,600 higher. That would be an annual bill. 

22 Q. Are not the steam rates also higher in 

23 St. Louis than they are in Kansas City! 

24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. Do you have a comparison of those! 
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A. 

t. h a UsUna of that infonultlon we received 

• Louis operator of their tariff rates fro• 

4 Dece•ber 1984. They have three rates: contract, 

5 noncontract. and interruptible. And in all instances, 

6 except for the interruptible, including gross receipts tax, 

1 I believe the rate, the steam rate, is higher in St. Louis. 

8 Q. What is the Kansas City steam rate? 

9 A. I've heard a figure the last couple days, 

10 $10.50 an Mlb. 

11 Q. Where did you hear that from? 

12 A. I know Mr. Beaudoin testified to it 

13 yesterday. 

14 MR. FINNEGAN: That's all the questions I 

15 have. Thank you. 

16 

17 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Kennett. 

MR. KENNETT: I have no questions for 

18 Mr. Featherstone. 

19 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Which of you is going to 

20 cross-examination? Mr. English. 

21 MR. ENGLISH: I drew the long straw, your 

22 Honor. 

23 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. ENGLISH: 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Good afternoon, Mr. Featherstone. 

Good afternoon. Mr. English. 
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minutes ago! 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

• Peatber1tone. could you glwe me again 

MCP charge that you calculated far KPL Gas 

that you compared to Laclede Gas just a few 

Kansas City was $4.23. 

For MCF? 

For MCF or for MMBtu. We use the same 

conversion, one to one. 

Q. What schedule is that under in the KPL rates? 

A. KPL rates, that would be small. It's a 

small customer. 

Q. Would that rate, to your knowledge, be the 

one that would be charged to a customer in Kansas City who 

put in a gas boiler of, say, 200 boiler horsepower? 

A. I don't know. The rates are the same for 

small, medium, and large customer. 

Q. 

they are in? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

So it doesn't matter what classification 

No, apparently not. 

That's the current rate for gas? 

Yes, I believe so. 

Q. As a general proposition, Mr. Featherstone, 

should a regulated utility market its regulated services? 

A. I would say generally any company, regulated 

or unregulated, it is very important for them to protect 
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Q. ln t weys a at 

teet its revenue customer base? 

A. Well, there's a lot of testimony that 

has submitted for Commission review that 

addresses that very question. Certainly when the 

. Kansas City Power & Light steam utility started to see a 
i 
11 downward trend in their customer base and their Mlb. sales 

10 in the early 1970s, they should have started to try to 

11 promote their product to downtown Kansas City a little more. 

12 Q. In what ways, Mr. Featherstone? 

13 A. As I understand, one approach is just to 

14 have a presence. When you're dealing with a very confined 

15 or compressed service territory that the downtown community 

16 has, you would be looking at dealing with almost a door-to-

17 door canvassing. You would be looking with working with the 

18 developers, trying to attract as many of the new development 

19 as you possibly can. And you would just have a presence 

20 down there whether it would be on a day-to-day basis, going 

21 door to door, seeing what's going to be going on in the 

22 downtown community. 

23 Q. In the Staff audit of this case, did it 

24 uncover any customer complaints about the service! 

25 A. As I recall, there was some documentation 
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u he w~s using for his laundry 

indeed, he converted over to natural gas. 

6 I l 1 when 1 talked to the people from the Rodeway 

1 !'Hotel, there was some comph int about outages and not being 

8 notified. 

9 Q. But these are all the customer complaints 

10 that you were able to do--

11 A. That I saw. 

12 Q. Would a steam utility, such as KCPL, still 

13 be bounded by the promotional practices rules of this 

14 Commission? 

15 A. Do you say "should it"? 

16 Q. In Staff's opinion, is it? 

17 A. A steam utility bounded by the promotional 

18 practice rule, yes. 

19 Q. So whatever aggressive or marketing program 

20 would have to live within the constraints of the promotional 

21 practices rules in the Staff's opinion? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. What about advertising, Mr. Featherstone? 

24 Wouldn't aggressive advertising campaign fit in with an 

25 aggressive marketing approach for a steam system in downtown 
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door to door and speak to them or call them up 

I meet with them on a very firsthand personal basis. I 

,~wouldn't expect that you would take out a billboard sign and 
l 

8 ,advertise the district heating system in downtown 

9 ,Kansas City. 

10 Q. The Staff in KCPL's last electric rate case 

11 proposed various categories of advertising expense, some 

12 allowable and some nonallowable. Would Staff's opinion of 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

allowable and disallowable steam advertising expense follow 

along those lines? 

A. They'd be allowable in the kind of--if you 

want to call it advertising or just having a customer 

presence. I think the Staff in that case addressed the 

issue of was it cost justified. The advertising dollars 

that you were expending, were you receiving revenues back in 

kind or at least making some sort of contribution. And in 

the Staff's view, and I guess the Commission view as well 

because they accepted that position, they found that the 

costs were not justified. 

However, in the steam, the type of presence 

or the type of customer relations that we're talking about 
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7 

8 

9 

10 

than 're presently dolna with your 

operations. You' ro doll hi dally with developer~ 

ln downtown Kansas City or throuahout the rest of the 

metropolitan area. Those kinds of costs are in rate base. 

So l think there is a distinction to be 

drawn from advertising or a mass media type of campaign as 

opposed to the type of--really customer relations that 

Mr. Graham and his people do. 

Q. Has Staff done any study or cost benefit 

analysis showing that if KCPL had marketed differently, 

11 customers would have been retained? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. We looked at some figures, and we also 

requested as a backup or check from the company, that type 

of information if you would have received the new 

construction in downtown Kansas City type of thing, AT&T, 

One Kansas City Place, the Wyandotte Plaza, and other 

buildings, as well as if you would have retained the 

customer's loss to natural gas. So we looked at that kind 

of information. 

Q. The question was: Did Staff do any 

cost benefit analysis that showed that the type of marketing 

that you suggest would have been successful? 

A. I don't know as to we assigned any dollar 

cost to it. We calculated revenues or wllat we would have 

perceived to be the customer usase aad the revenues 
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~Hb 

Q No~~ yo~ r 

~ctual \nt~rvl c~lto~~rs, ox~c~sto~ers, and 

oone~~to~ers lCPL, di •t you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did any of your interviewees say that it 

the system because of reasons other than economics? 

A. We interviewed several, and it's hard to 

draw just a composite of all of them in one or two 

sentences. But I think the general feeling was that it was 

a foregoing conclusion that the steam system was old, and it 

had perhaps had enough problems and was not going to be 

continued with Kansas City Power & Light. So it was really 

a foregoing conclusion. I don't know as we really addressed 

the economics. 

Q. Well, let's go specifically if you're having 

problems drawing a composite. You interviewed One 

Kansas City Place or people associated with One Kansas City 

Place, didn't you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And didn't the interviewee indicate that 

a decision to go with electric rather than gas was purely an 

economic one? 

A. I don't have my notes up here. If I could 

aet those notes--
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Q. •t your nates also indicate 

A. Do you have the notes that I can refer to? 

1 Q. I refer your attention to Page 2 of the 

8 ~~document entitled "Meeting Notes From Interview With 

9 Executive Hills-Developer, One Kansas City Place Office 

10 Building," Page 2, the second full paragraph, the fourth 

11 line from the bottom, leading into the third line from the 

12 bottom. 

13 A. "Mr. Iseman indicated that back in 1972 when 

14 they were looking at the Eighth and Cherry and Eleventh and 

15 McGee Bell Buildings, they went steam but now the cost had 

16 become outrageous." 

17 Q. Was one of your interviewees also people 

18 associated with the Rodeway Hotel in downtown Kansas City? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. And didn't the interviewee state that steam 

21 cost was about $609 a room at the Rodeway and gas cost $292 

22 per room for the Central Hotel? 

23 A. I know he had a problem with his bills. He 

24 took over the management of the Rodeway I believe it was in 

25 '84. And as I recall, the first heating season he started 

,I 
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he. 1 

to lntensi fort. 

1. sever~l contractors co•e in writing 

He h1d billing proble•s· He didn't like the cost 

excuse •e. --of steam. 

Q. But don't your notes also indicate that he 

gave that comparison of steam versus gas per room at these 

two properties? 

A. It would be helpful--the notes are five 

pages--four pages. I haven't looked at these for a while. 

Q. I would refer you to Page 4, second full 

paragraph. 

A. He said when he compared the Central cost, 

which was another hotel that they operated, they were $292 

per room using natural gas and Rodeway's cost was $609 per 

room for steam. So, yes. 

Q. I would refer you now to the meeting notes 

that Staff took--and I note that you were a participant-­

where the interview was Tower Properties--

A. Yes. 

Q. --because I'm going to have a question on 

that. 

A. Yes. 

Q. On Page 3 of the meeting notes from your 

interview with Tower Properties representatives, do I read 
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At the botto• of 

A. Ye~h. l have the annual savings to be 

natural gas. 

Q. Based on the base of electric? 

A. Yes. 

Q. It shows that steam would save approximately 

10 

11 

12 

$13,000 a year? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

So the differential of savings between 

13 natural gas and steam would be roughly $46,000 minus 

14 $13,000? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. How do you market a $33,000 a year price 

17 differential? 

18 A. I think KCPL will not market the $33,000 

19 price differential. However, there are others apparently 

20 who want to market that differential and try to make up that 

21 differential. 

22 Q. My question is though, Mr. Featherstone, 

23 how would you propose to market that sort of pricing 

24 differential? 

25

1 
~~----------A __ • ____ I __ w_o_u_l_d __ p_r_o_~_s_:_e __ S_t_a_f_f_'_s __ r_e_c_o_mm __ e_n_d_a_t-io_n __ t_o----~ 
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in dlst ct ina 

would 

citl~l that have 

saae type of thinas that have happened to KCPL's 

They apparently feel that their product is 

aar\etable. They are marketing. 

Q. Would you agree, Mr. Featherstone, that 

marketability depends, among other things, on the relative 

costs of the competing products? 

A. Sure. 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, in the rebuttal testimony 

exhibits you filed, Schedule 2-14 to be exact, you show a 

cost comparison for St. Louis steam that you obtained 

through Catalyst. And it indicates that, even back in 1983, 

Central steam costs several dollars of an Mlb. less than an 

in-building boiler with gas fuel; is that correct? 

A. What page are you on? 

Q. Schedule 2-14, Mr. Featherstone. 

A. Okay. And your question? 

Q. Doesn't it show on there that Central steam 

heat costs several dollars an Mlb. less than in-building 

boiler gas fuel? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is that the same situation that we face in 

Kansas City? 
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1f you tate all the 

you _,ould have to lncur for natural su 
ion. When you leo\ at that on that basis, you 

probably are under natural sas. On an energy basis, I would 

agree that natural gas is less. 
Q. But here in St. Louis, Mr. Featherstone, it 

shows that with a boiler and with gas fuel, looking at all 

the costs, both capital and operating, gas according to the 

thermal is not really competitive with their estimates of 

central steam prices; is that true? 

A. This graph shows that very definitely 

they're under natural gas. 
Q. Do you know what the gas price in Baltimore, 

Maryland is? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Do you know what the gas price is in 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania? 

A. No. 

Q. Now, according to Mr. Cox's Schedule 6-1 

in Case Nos. ER-77-118 through HR-82-67, Staff's aggregate 

recommended revenue deficiency was about $1,600,000 higher 

than ICPL's aggregate recommended revenue deficiencies in 

those cases. What, in your estimation, would have been the 

effect on ICPL's customer base had Staff's revenue 

requirements been accepted in these cases! 
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lell~ lt vould cert nly--lf St~ff•s 

2 •~•~• 8 Ilion x vould b~en reflected in rat~s, 

3 lt caused the rate to be higher. And all things 

4 cons equal, then the customers would have to make 

s their choices based on that rate and probably would have 

6 looked at alternatives. 

1 Q. Given the past history that customers have 

s left the KCPL system with the rates at KCPL's proposed 

9 levels, do you have an opinion on whether or not the same, 

10 more, or less customers would have left if Staff's revenue 

11 level had been built into rates? 

12 A. No, I don't have an opinion. I don't know 

13 whether they would or not. 

14 Q. Out of those cases, Staff never alleged 

15 marketing or management inefficiencies, did they, with 

16 respect to steam? 

17 A. No. In those cases--and I tried to allude 

18 to this in my direct testimony--we were dealing with just a 

19 revenue requirement case. We were looking sometimes in 

20 conjunction with the electric operations, and it became just 

21 a matter of allocating pieces of cost on a total company 

22 basis to the steam operations. We were also not looking at 

23 an abandonment case. We were not looking at a utility 

24 requesting to be relieved of its public utility obligation. 

25 So we looked at this case in a auch 

153 
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10 

11 

12 

retource 

into h can 

cootra~t to previous or prior 1team rate c1ses. 

Q. So i~ it your test\mooy that Staff doesn't 

A. 

Q. 

efficiency except in an abandonment case? 

Not at all. 

That is the only scenario that you've given 

that Staff has looked at management efficiency because 

this is an abandonment case. 

A. No. I tried to contrast the differences 

between what we have done in the past in steam rate cases. 

I worked on the '82 steam case in conjunction with KCPL's 

13 '82 electric rate case. 

14 You know, I know that we had a couple 

15 meetings with regard to the line loss problem. As I recall, 

16 Mr. Ashpaugh, who did revenues in that case, had a meeting 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

with Mr. Mandacina; and they were told at that time that 

line losses were a problem. The company knew they were a 

problem, and they were addressing them. So to that extent, 

we didn't have really much to go on. 

Q. Back in 1982, the steam losses were in the 

high 30 percent; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Staff built that level into its revenue 

deficiency! 

2S4 
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this t. lt'l been awhlle•mbut l 

was 1 • ve-year average. We were told 

was an orsanilatlon that was now structured to 

s •ddress the proble•s of the stea• plant, the stea• 

6 'Operations, and they had just really started their effort. 

1 I believe we took a five-year average. And I can get the 

8 infor•ation for it, but I believe it was like 30 percent. 

9 At one point in the late '70s, the line losses--unaccounted 

10 for losses was around 44 percent. So we did not build in as 

11 high a level of losses as what the system achieved. It was 

12 on its way down, I guess. 

13 Q. Mr. Featherstone, what is the effect on 

14 KCPL's steam rates today of KCPL not increasing distribution 

15 on O&M expense before 1982? 

16 A. Rates would be lower. 

17 Q. Mr. Featherstone, when was the last time 

18 KCPL had a rate increase for steam? 

19 A. I believe the current rates were effective 

20 the first part of June 1982. 

21 Q. What is the basis of your statement then 

22 that the rates would be lower today if KCPL increased 

23 distribution on O&M expense prior to 1982? 

24 A. I misunderstood your question. 

25 Q. Let me repeat it then. Mr. Featherstone, in 



, vh•t would be tho effect on r•tos today if 

tncroa~od l ts dl st butlon on M oxponu before 

A. If they increased their distribution on o•M 

expenses, they'd be higher. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

The rates today would be higher? 

Yes. 

Mr. Featherstone, do you believe that 

9 another fully regulated utility can successfully operate 

10 a steam system in Kansas City? 

11 A. I don't know. I guess our proposal is to 

12 see if there is someone out there. We believe that other 

13 systems exist where there have been an operator who has been 

14 interested in taking it over in regulated and nonregulated 

15 environments. I don't know what the bid process will find. 

16 We've tried to leave it open and flexible to just--let's 

17 look and see what--someone of any interest to come in and 

18 what are they proposing. 

19 I don't think we are interested, as a Staff, 

20 to look in a lot of isolated instances and leave customers 

21 stranded. So we would be very interested if the customer 

22 base would go along with those proposals. But I would not 

23 want to preclude or say that we would throw out prior to 

testing the water, so to speak. 

Q. Mr. Featherstoae, are Staff's criteria for 

1S6 
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at••• ••rwlc• Is c••• f 

r~s crlt•rl• lna steaa servlc• laarlly 

lt out in St. , Missouri? 

A. I don•t thi wholly it's different. I 

don't ieve the St. Joseph ca!e is a aodel case. The 

St. Joseph case, they had applied to abandon the system in 

the early '70s--! believe in '74--and the Commission 

rejected the proposal. They rejected it largely on the 

grounds that we find ourselves and that there was still a 

need and it was viable and there was still an interest. And 

the customers were not necessarily going to be better off 

without the steam system. 

latter part of the '70s. 

They received a rate increase the 

And finally in 1980, then the 

Commission, through really pricing the customer base off the 

market, had little alternative by that time. It was so low 

down on the death spiral, I don't think anyone could have 

saved it. 

Q. In the course of your employment with the 

Commission, you have occasion to audit the books and records 

of Union Electric, don't you? 

A. The Staff does. I haven't personally. 

Q. You've attached to your rebuttal testimony a 

copy, I believe, of the Commission's Order in the case that 

authorizes sale of the Union Electric system to Bi-State and 

Thermal. Doesn't that Order reflect that soae of the costs 

157 
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A. Yes. I rst the ey phnt 

IUnlon iHectrh: is h a very simlhr situation tc what the 

'I 
I 

Avenue plant was prior to the rework of the downtown 

electric network, that they use the Ashley plant for a 

backup to the electric system. So they have an agreement 

with Union Electric to buy power--I'm sorry. They have an 

agreement with Catalyst Thermal to buy power for that 

reason. That's only up until the point in time when the 

substation can be constructed in downtown St. Louis. 

Q. But that exists at the present time, the 

buying of power? 

A. Yes. 

MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Mr. Featherstone. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Questions from the Bench? 

Commissioner Hendren. 

COMMISSIONER HENDREN: No questions. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Commissioner Fischer. 

COMMISSIONER FISCHER: No. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Commissioner Musgrave. 

QUESTIONS BY COMMISSIONER MUSGRAVE: 

Q. Mr. Featherstone~ have you ever been to 

downtown St. Joseph, Missouri? 

A. Yes. 

251 
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~-~ll@r~ l~!! conc~ntrat own. 

Q. Mbat would you say the economic life of 

St. Joseph, Missouri is? 

1 1 A. When I was there in the early '80s, I was 

a there~~in fact, that was the first rate case I went on with 

9 the Commission~-they were having a lot of people--a lot of 

10 businesses moving to the shopping malls, going out to the 

11 suburbs. 

12 

13 

Q. 

A. 

Would you call it a dying downtown? 

At that time. I'm not familiar with what is 

14 currently going on in downtown St. Joseph, Missouri. 

15 Q. Were the customers downtown, the businesses, 

16 the department stores, were they on the St. Joseph Light & 
17 Power steam loop? 

18 A. It's my understanding they were, yes. 

19 Q. Do you think that that had any bearing on 

20 the reason that they had to leave the marketplace downtown 

21 and go to the suburbs, the cost of steam there? 

22 A. I don't know. 

23 Q. With reference to the downtown steam loop in 

24 Kansas City and the position that the Staff is taking, that 

25 it would be possible for another company or entity to run 
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loop~ t lt~ econo.h:ally 

to i 1 aU new linn to 

• itU~? 

4 A. f consultants provld 

6 t•st on t topic, and they have found that th 

6 own sysu~ can s t U 1 be viable • They're not running 

1, all new lines. They're installing portions of lines, as I 

s understand their testimony. They're utilizing some of the 

9 same plant facilities that are in current existence with the 

10 idea that an operator will try to stabilize sales, stabilize 

11 the customer base, try to cut costs through cost saving 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

measures and then address some of the long-term needs of the 

system as they can turn things around as far as the 

operations are concerned. 

Q. But do you think that it would be important 

or worthwhile to install for the present customers, the 130 

that we've got on there, this 80-year old steam line that's 

in the streets now to put in all new lines for these 

customers? 

A. It might be worthwhile from the system 

reliability, but you would probably drive the cost up so 

high that you wouldn't have any customers to serve. I think 

it has to be done in a systematic way. It has to be done 

with an operator who is going to do what Arkansas was 

describing. I don't think that anyone can come in and just 
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2 q. Oo 1 not· Qprofit 

1atlon could opent~ th~ ste111 phnt ln Kansas City? 

A. Perhaps. 1 know St. Louis h kind of quasi. 

owns the distribution syste11, and Catalyst Ther11al 

6 owns the production facilities. 

Q. But we taxpayers don't view the city 

8 government and county government as not-for-profit, do we? 

9 The building boom that has taken place in 

10 downtown Kansas City in the last several years--and 

11 generally fairly well-occupied buildings--and those new 

12 buildings that haven't hooked on to the steam line, does it 

13 indicate to you that the steam system hasn't been a 

14 consideration of people building new facilities downtown? 

15 A. No. I know steam hasn't been a 

16 consideration. I talked--

17 Q. Do you think possibly it's because of the 

18 reliability or the economics? 

19 A. I think it's the fact that Kansas City 

20 Power & Light wants out of the steam business, and it wasn't 

21 going to be available. I know I talked to the engineering 

22 firm handling the AT&T pavilion, and they didn't even bother 

23 to run their analysis for steam. He said he believed all 

24 along that the steam system vas goae, that KCPL was going to 

25 abandon the system and it wasn't necessary to do that 
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Q. H1v~ you tal to e are not 

l1rly e stea~ syste~ in 

City th1t are residents or fa~iliar with that 

• a is it their ~eneral understanding too that 

syste~ is going to be abandoned in 1990? 

7 A. I would think anybody familiar with downtown 

8 Kansas City had kept abreast of the business journals and 

9 just the handouts. It is no secret; KCPL has publicized it 

10 very openly that they want out of the business. So I would 

11 suspect that by now, a very large percentage of the people 

12 down there believe that at least the current structure is 

13 to change in the future. 

14 Q. Mr. Featherstone, do you have any idea how 

15 much it costs to make a street cut to repair the steam 

16 line? 

17 

18 that. 

19 

A. I don't. Our consultants have addressed 

Q. Do you have any idea as to how long an 

20 opening would be left before it was repaired and put back, 

21 the street put back in useful condition? 

22 A. No, I don't. 

23 Q. Do you have any idea how many street cuts 

24 have been made in the last five years downtown to repair the 

lines? 
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t POW'if •,l ~ I U'Uilly ~~~ tnot Cf~WI 

lon. It' • ther Southw~stern Bell or someone 11 

streets. So there is a lot of actlvi 

there. rtlcularly with the construction that's going 

Q. If the steam lines are buried as deep as 

8 they said they are, it's probably a more complicated dig up 

9 than for a telephone line, isn't it? I think we heard this 

10 morning that they were 22 feet deep in some places. It 

11 would take longer to dig up something 22 feet down than it 

12 would 8 feet down, wouldn't it? 

13 A. I don't know. I suppose it would. 

14 COMMISSIONER MUSGRAVE: Thank you. That's 

15 all I have. 

16 EXAMINER HOGERTY: Redirect? 

17 MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Madam Examiner. 

18 REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. YOUNG: 

19 Q. Mr. Featherstone, I believe I heard you say 

20 that for the St. Louis system that the city owns the 

21 distribution system? 

22 A. I believe they do. 

23 Q. Okay. If as is applied here and asserted by 

24 the company, steam is not competitive with gas, why are 

25 there still customers who want to take Central steam 
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~~nl 

2 l ~ I •t H 's to an 

3 les of wh~th~r on~ h ~con om i cal 

.. 1 ~~~an, you get into th~ situation where you 

5 analysis and you look at rates. And depending on 

6 whu you want to show, you can--

7 Q. Well, if that were true, why would people 

8 want to stay on the steam system? 

9 A. They can avoid up front capital costs. It's 

10 cheaper as far as first costs are concerned. It's less 

11 disruptive because they've already got the system in place; 

12 so they don't have any changeover from their hydraulics, 

13 piping in the building to a boiler plant, space 

14 requirements. And there is some operating cost associated 

15 with it. You do have to have an operator when the boilers 

16 get to a large enough degree. 

17 I heard the testimony yesterday, and I guess 

18 the company was trying to imply that that was very minimal. 

19 I talked to the Commerce people, and they factor in in their 

20 analysis a dollar per MCF for labor charge. So you have 

21 those costs associated with both electric and steam plant--

22 or excuse me. --electric and gas plant that you do not have 

23 with steam. 

24 Q. And what will that labor cost be for? 

25 A. For maintena~ce, operation of maintenance 

..... ------------------------------- .. ~-.-
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23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. Of the boiler. •alntatnina the boiler. 

Q. Would it be possible, under any scenario, 

lncreasins your operation and maintenance expenses 

could actually result in reduced rates, just say, cut your 

line losses and generate additional revenues or cut expenses 

in that area? 

A. Well, certainly, if you increased your sales 

and you cut cost, then you could reduce rates. 

MS. YOUNG: No further redirect. Thank you. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Ms. Bjelland. 

MS. BJELLAND: No questions. 

EXAMINER HOGERTY: Mr. Finnegan. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FINNEGAN: 

Q. Mr. Featherstone, isn't one of the marketing 

features offered in St. Louis a long-term fixed contract 

with known rates for many years to come? 

A. Depending on how you define "long 

term." It's my understanding that their contract rate, as 

they call it, is one year. And there is a 5 percent 

discount for that. 

Q. A 20-year contract? 

A. I'm not familiar with that. 

Q. Speaking of aarketiag. do you see an 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

1 .~.,·vat probl ~• l n aarl~U na product 1 wluut the ut U 1ty 

2 :of· coapet inl products such u 111Uam and electricity? 

3 A. As lena as they don't interfere with one 

4 anoth~r, they aenerally will not have a problem marketing 

s it. The problem exists when they're in conflict or they're 

6 in competition for the same customers. Clearly, that is 

1 what has happened in downtown Kansas City, that KCPL, as a 

8 corporate entity--let's face it, they're an electric 

g utility. 98, 99 percent of their revenues are electric 

10 generated. And they have off-peak sales as a goal, as a 

11 corporate policy. So they're not going to go in and compete 

12 with themselves. 

13 Q. The off-peak sales is also exacerbated by 

14 the excess of electricity that KCPL has at this--stated at 

15 the time? 

16 A. I don't know if it's due to--whether it is 

17 excess or capacity problems or not. I don't know. It's 

18 just a corporate policy. KCPL has a problem with their 

19 system load. They are not--or at least in the past not been 

20 able to utilize their production facilities in a very 

21 efficient manner. That's really not necessarily no fault of 

22 their own. It's just generally the way it is in the midwest 

23 with regard to electric utilities. They have a fairly low 

24 load factor for utility the size that they are. 

25 Q. If you would refer to Sckedule Z of your 

1M 
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of 

$trict Heati~g 6 Cooll 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you had opportunity to review those 

6 stateaents regarding cost-efficiency, reliability, fuel 
i 

1 •' versatility, trash-to-energy, carefree ope rat ion and energy 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

aanagement, eliminates space problems, and the bottom 

line-locked in prices for 20 years? 

A. Yes, I see that. 

Q. Have you had an opportunity to review this? 

A. I've glanced at this material. 

Q. Would you agree that these are the benefits 

of district heating and cooling? 

A. Yes. We have a consultant who addresses 

some of the benefits of Central district heating, Staff 

Consultant Fuller in his testimony. Many of these same 

types of things are in his testimony. 

Q. I understand the bottom line of your 

testimony is you want somebody to take a look and see if 

they are interested in buying the system that could perhaps 

22 offer the same benefits to the Kansas City metropolitan 

23 area; is that correct? 

24 A. Correct. I see no reason why, at this 

25 

1 

juncture, that we should abandon steam service in downtown 
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• 1 think, is cl•~T in th~ r•cord froa 

tve that it can still be viable with the 

rtaht 'et of circuastances. 

Q. I believe also in this rebuttal testiaony, 

Exhibits--there is a list of the--Schedules 2-36 and 37--

showing the list of the new Thermal steam customers in 

St. Louis in 1986; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And on Page 2-38, it shows the load of these 

customers, 2-38 and 2-39. 

A. It's a projected Mlb. usage per year for 

each customer. It's hooked to the system. And then there 

is also a decrease of customers who have left, and they've 

netted out to a total of 64,000 Mlbs. addition. 

Q. Do you know what the growth in the St. Louis 

system was prior to the sale by Union Electric to Thermal 

and the commencement of operations by Thermal and Bi-State? 

A. It was very similar to KCPL's. The 

customers and the sales had diminished over time until 

Thermal took it over. 

Q. St. Louis is also experiencing a rebirth 

downtown as is Kansas City, is it not, in buildings? 

A. Yes. I think they've had considerable 

constru~tion down there. 
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1 Q. U are net all now 

'l ., •ro 

3 A. No. ln fact, cno that wa~ intorostins··I 

4 was involved with tho Southwestern Bell audit in '83, and we 

s were watchina the Southwestern Bell One Bell Center so up. 

6 .And l believe it went··if I'm not mistaken, I believe it 

1 went electric. Catalyst is now hooked up to the 

8 Southwestern Bell building. They're providing 

9 humidification. And they've put in a sufficient capacity so 

10 that at one point he believes that they can obtain the 

11 heating load for the Bell building. I believe it was 

12 constructed in--finished in December 1984. 

13 Q. And some other buildings on this list, like 

14 Union Market, has been there forever that I 'know of. The 

15 Alverne Residence. The American Theatre has been downtown 

16 for some years, or do you 'know that? 

17 A. I don't know anything about the Union 

18 Market. I know the Adams Mark Hotel is the one that's just 

19 going up across from the Arch. And they--I believe it was 

20 constructed sometime in '85, '86. And during the planning 

21 stages or the development stages, the hearings were going on 

22 down here. So they did not plan the building for heat load, 

23 but this is 'kitchen facilities. 

24 MR. FINNEGAN: That's all the questions I 

25 have. Thank you. 
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Kennett. 

no Uon1 

NER Mr. English. 

MR. ENGLAND: One question, your Honor. 

6 RECROSS-EXAMINATiON BY MR. ENGLISH: 

1 Q. Mr. Featherstone, does Commerce Bank have 

8 : gas or electric boilers? 

9 1!1 A. They're gas. 

10 ~ MR. ENGLAND: Thank you. 

11 I EXAMINER HOGERTY: Thank you, 

12 Mr. Featherstone. 

13 (Witness excused.) 

14 

15 EXAMINER HOGERTY: That concludes the 

16 witnesses for today, does it not? 

17 MS. YOUNG: Yes, it does. 

18 EXAMINER HOGERTY: We will be in recess 

19 until ten o'clock tomorrow morning. 

20 WHEREUPON, the hearing of this case was 

21 adjourned until 10 a.m., Wednesday, April 8, 1987. 

22 

23 

24 

25 





I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
II 
I 
I 
I 

BIT NO. lS 
rect Testimony and Schedule 

of Robert H. Graham 

1 ;EXHIBIT NO. 16 
1 Rebuttal Testimony and Schedules 

8 of Robert H. Graham 

9 EXHIBIT NO. 17 
Direct Testimony and Schedules 

10 of Cary G. Featherstone 

11 EXHIBIT NO. 18 
Rebuttal Testimony and Schedules 

12 of Cary G. Featherstone 

13 

14 

EXHIBIT NO. 19 
Surrebuttal Testimony of Cary G. 
Featherstone 

15 EXHIBIT NO. 20 
Data Information Request No. 690 

16 
EXHIBIT NO. 21 

17 Data Information Request No. 191 

18 EXHIBIT NO. 22 
Memo to J. R. Miller from J. M. Evans 

19 Dated January 21, 1981 

20 EXHIBIT NO. 23 
Memorandum to Steven W. Cattron from 

21 R. H. Graham Dated January 23, 1987 

22 EXHIBIT NO. 24 
Excerpt from ICPL Plan, Revision One, 

23 February 1984 

24 EXHIBIT NO. 25 
Memorandum to A. J. Doyle from B. J. 

25 Beaudoin Dated August 3, 1914 

141 196 

141 

141 

141 

141 

141 

156 196 

206 207 

210 212 

214 215 

217 218 

222 223 



I 
I I 1! ~ 

I II 
I 3 'I IT NO. 26 

li tun Net R. H. Graham 

~ II a M~u~t\ng in D~cember 1984 235 

I : I~ NO. 27 
Various Pages of Transcri~t in 
Case Nos. ER-85-128, B0-8 -185, 

I [i and B0-85-224 236 

1 ' 

I 
8 

9 

I 10 

11 

I 12 

I 
13 

14 

I 15 

16 

I 17 

18 

I 19 

I 20 

21 

I 22 

23 

I 24 

~I 
25 

I 17Jc 

I 




